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26,773,178.03 100.79
210,215.36 0.79
26,562,962.67
( 3,972 ) 100.00
2025
)
18,089,984.84 | 26,562,962.67 1.47| 26,773,178.03 1.48 | 100.79
2025
[
2034/08/04 7.10 3.90
2029/01/03 8.50 3.80
2029/03/15 9.00 2.84
2032/03/31 8.25 2.79
2040/01/31 9.00 2.64
2033/09/02 13.25 2.45
2036/11/20 10.00 2.40
2029/01/10 5.80 2.31
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2025

N )

2015 11 110,472,193 16,517,802 5.49 821

2016 11 123,974,417 18,536,655 5.12 766
10

2017 11 120,593,871 18,031,196 5.48 819
11

2018 11 98,622,154 14,745,984 4.46 667
12

2019 11 113,749,891 17,007,884 4.34 649
13

2020 11 98,036,038 14,658,348 3.98 595
14

2021 11 57,903,626 8,657,750 3.30 493
15

2022 11 39,259,278 5,870,047 2.69 402
16

2023 11 34,597,255 5,172,982 2.74 410
17

2024 11 28,330,537 4,235,982 2.57 384

2024 31,101,437 4,650,287 2.63 393

31,103,309 4,650,567 2.65 396

30,515,309 4,562,649 2.60 389

30,678,759 4,587,088 2.64 395

30,821,348 4,608,408 2.69 402

31,552,173 4,717,681 2.77 414

10 29,610,548 4,427,369 2.60 389

11 28,330,537 4,235,982 2.57 384

12 26,914,578 4,024,268 2.52 377

2025 27,042,268 4,043,360 2.54 380

26,789,179 4,005,518 2.55 381

26,562,963 3,971,694 2.55 381
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2014 12 2015 11 30 0.64 96

2015 12 2016 11 30 0.48 12
10

2016 12 2017 11 30 0.48 2
11

2017 12 2018 11 30 0.48 72
12

2018 12 2019 11 30 0.48 2
13

2019 12 2020 11 30 0.48 12
14

2020 12 2021 11 30 0.41 61
15

2021 12 2022 11 30 0.24 36
16

2022 12 2023 11 30 0.18 27
17

2023 12 2024 11 30 0.18 21

2024 0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

10 0.015 2

11 0.015 2

12 0.015 2

2025 0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2
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2014 12 2015 11 30 19.02

2015 12 2016 11 30 2.00
10 2016 12 2017 11 30 16.41
11 2017 12 2018 11 30 9.85
12 2018 12 2019 11 30 8.07
13 2019 12 2020 11 30 2.76
14 2020 12 2021 11 30 6.78
15 2021 12 2022 11 30 11.21
16 2022 12 2023 11 30 8.55
17 2023 12 2024 11 30 0.36

x 100
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924,927 5,197,632 9,012,696
(924,927) (5.,197,632) (9,012,696)
6,466,599 2,971,425 12,507,870
(6,466,599) (2,971,425) (12,507,870)
10 4,418,116 4,629,532 12,296,454
(4,418,116) (4,629,532) (12,296,454)
1 6,160,303 5,383,471 13,073,286
(6,160,303) (5.383,471) (13,073, 286)
1 7,047,426 2,718,115 17,402,597
(7,047,426) (2,718,115) (17,402,597)
13 2,366,918 3,991,633 15,777,882
(2.366,918) (3,991,633) (15,777,882)
1 535,707 6,880,412 9,433,177
535,707 6,880,412 9,433,177
15 150,744 2,789,001 6,794,830
150,744 2,789,001 6,794,830
16 240,944 1,641,836 5,393,938
240,944 1,641,836 5,393,938
17 29,917 1,229,613 4,194,242

(29,917)

(1,229,613)

(4,194,242)
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328

23 103

PricewaterhouseCoopers, lIreland

2025
31 149.52

137/292



EDINETOOOO

OO000oDO00oDo0oDo00Do000o000oO00D0DO00DoO00DOoOn(E34836)
OOooooooooooooooooOo

2024 11 30
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
0 28,556,036 4,269,699 34,846,524 5,210,252
(e) 13 - - 975 146
146,916 21,967 41,116 6,148
36,107 5,399 360,483 53,899
28,739,059 4,297,064 35,249,008 5,270,445
(e) 13 2,405 360 - -
104 16 - -
31,229 4,669 360,614 53,919
143,249 21,419 69,400 10,377
15,953 2,385 16,128 2,411
39,759 5,945 69,400 10,377
1,491 223 2,602 389
27,401 4,007 19,055 2,849
72,026 10,769 44,838 6,704
74,905 11,200 69,806 10,437
408,522 61,082 651,843 97,464
10 28,330,537 4,235,982 34,597,255 5,172,982
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2024 11 30
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
(b) 3,306,943 494,454 4,109,662 614,477
(6,284,284) (939, 626) (8,711,301) (1,302,514)
3,684,604 550,922 8,502,222 1,271,252
707,263 105,750 3,900,583 583,215
253,340 37,879 299,855 44,834
38,375 5,738 38,810 5,803
253,340 37,879 299,855 44,834
9,500 1,420 11,245 1,681
12,692 1,898 37,036 5,538
108,649 16,245 105,569 15,785
143,225 21,415 98,329 14,702
819,121 122,475 890,699 133,177
(223,772) (33,458) (186,039) (27,817)
595,349 89,017 704,660 105,361
111,914 16,733 3,195,923 477,854
11 830,830 124,226 1,118,840 167,289
830,830 124,226 1,118,840 167,289
(718,916) (107,492) 2,077,083 310,565
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2024 11 30
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
34,597,255 5,172,982 39,259,278 5,870,047
194,779 29,123 1,190,863 178,058
(5,742,581) (858,631) (7,929,969) (1,185,689)
(718,916) (107,492) 2,077,083 310,565
28,330,537 4,235,982 34,597,255 5,172,982
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2024 11 30

2013

10

102 102

102

102
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1990
(b
(c
(d
102
(a 102 11 12
(b
39 39
11 12 (c
11 12 39
11 12
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(f
(9
(h
102 22
2024 11 30
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
1997 739
(a

(b
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102 34

102

2024 11 30

28,556,036 - - 28,556,036

28,556,036 - - 28,556,036

2023 11 30
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34,846,524 - - 34,846,524
34,846,524 - - 34,846,524
19,998 2023 11 30 19,998
0.80
253,340 2023 11 30
299,855
2.5
2024 11 30 223,772
2023 11 30 186,039
36,000 2023 11

30 35,999
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2,375 2023 11 30
0.80
0.03
253,340 2023 11 30 299,855
9,500 2023 11 30
12,692 2023 11 30 37,036

CACEIS Bank, Ireland Branch
CACEIS Ireland Limited

2024 11 30 2023 11 30
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
(6,284,284) (8,711,301)
(6,284,284) (8,711,301)
3,684,604 8,502,222
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3,684,604 8,502,222
100 100 10,000
2023 12 2024 11 30
116,271 349 (18,625) 97,995
21,500 - (2,056) 19,444
140,363 2,234 (6,525) 136,072
5,393,938 29,917 (1,229,613) 4,194,242
5,672,072 32,500 (1,256,819) 4,447,753
2022 12 2023 11 30
128,824 5,016 (17,569) 116,271
24,637 - (3,137) 21,500
176,216 1,521 (37,374) 140,363
6,794,830 240,944 (1,641,836) 5,393,938
7,124,507 247,481 (1,699,916) 5,672,072
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10
2024 11 30
9,851,844 100.53
2,727,973 140.30
723,167,229 5,314.60
10,782,230 2.57
2023 11 30
11,665,157 100.33
2,914,312 135.55
732,806,755 5,220.79
14,795,368 2.74
2022 11 30
11,882,270 92.24
3,254,666 132.10
798,335,303 4,530.43
18,304,649 2.69
11
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2024 11 30

2023 12 15 2023 12 20 0.015 75,829
2024 16 2024 19 0.015 75,122
2024 15 2024 21 0.015 73,448
2024 15 2024 21 0.015 72,076
2024 15 2024 18 0.015 70,524
2024 15 2024 21 0.015 70,264
2024 17 2024 21 0.015 69,048
2024 16 2024 19 0.015 67,115
2024 16 2024 21 0.015 64,895
2024 17 2024 20 0.015 64,235
2024 10 15 2024 10 18 0.015 64,270
2024 11 15 2024 11 20 0.015 64,004
2023 11 30

2022 12 15 2022 12 20 0.015 97,796
2023 17 2023 20 0.015 98,655
2023 15 2023 21 0.015 97,907
2023 15 2023 20 0.015 98,642
2023 17 2023 20 0.015 97,636
2023 15 2023 19 0.015 94,924
2023 15 2023 21 0.015 92,533
2023 18 2023 21 0.015 91,660
2023 16 2023 21 0.015 89,822
2023 15 2023 21 0.015 87,897
2023 10 16 2023 10 19 0.015 86,964
2023 11 15 2023 11 20 0.015 84,404
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2024 11 30 20 2023 11 30
20
2024 11 30
20
2.2 ) 2.2
2.0 ) 2.0
1.5 ) 1.8
(1.6 ) 1.7
1.5 ) 1.5
.3 ) 6.0
(18.1 ) 15.2
2023 11 30
20
(1.8 ) 2.1
0.4 2.1 )
2.0 ) 2.0
2.0 ) 2.0
1.9 ) 1.9
(13.6 ) 10.6
(20.9 ) 16.5
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50bps 125bps
50bps 125bps 0.50
1.25
2024 11 30
75bps 2023 11 30 75bps
75bps 2023 11 30 75bps
2024 11 30

0.6 ) 0.7
0.5 ) 0.6
0.5 ) 0.6
0.5 ) 0.5
0.5 ) 0.5
1.8 ) 1.8
4.4 ) 4.7
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2023 11 30
0.7 ) 0.7
0.5 ) 0.5
0.5 ) 0.5
0.5 ) 0.5
0.4 ) 0.5
1.7 ) 1.8
4.3 ) 4.5
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10

2023 11 30 3.90

157/292



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
61.95 57.24
36.77 41.60
1.28 1.16
100.00 100.00
2024 11 30
2023 11 30
2024 11 30 2023 11 30

(c
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2024 11 30 2023 11 30

2024 11 30 2023 11 30
28,556,036 34,846,524
- 975
146,916 41,116
36,107 360,483
28,739,059 35,249,098
2024 11 30
100.80
2023 11 30
100.72
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(d
(
2019 2088
13
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
(b (©) (2,405) (0.01 ) 975 0.00
(2,405) (0.01 ) 975 0.00
(a
(b
14
102
15
31
16
2024 11 30 2023 11 30
0.946790 0.916506
150.185000 147.835000
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2024 11 30

19,037,357 @) (b) 28,556,036 100.80

28,556,036 100.80

28,556,036 100.80

2024 11 30 2023 11 30

28,556,036 100.80 34,846,524 100.72

(225,499) (0.80) (249,269) (0.72)

28,330,537 100.00 34,597,255 100.00

99.36 98.86

0.64 1.14

100.00 100.00
(a
(b
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Goldman Sachs Glebal Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 November 2024

) Menvimbr 2034 I Hovemibse 2033

Mol ushD S0
Angals
Fnaroind assebs ol b valun Bwoagh ot or ioss 2y 6 FA B 0 34 BAG M
Cash ) 13 a5
Raimbursammont oo s bnont Adviser ) 1 B0 41,16
Foncahyatdo b Evastmmls sold 51T I60ARS
Total Assdls 3.750.050 35,240,008
Liabilities
FRatk tvardratl ey 13 2405
[Pyl For arrensonan by puichasad 4]
[Pyl Bor aitits rodanioed M a1l
Imsimant Advisar feos penratle ) 143,240 A0
AdminisTabon i Daposilary leos patgibio T 15053 16.1%a
Dusiribusticnn fioss prngiadia ) 30,750 B3 A
At Bbomebzr lstrs Pyt 7 1,401 e vl
Trarvafar Al hisis pnvabdo I FT 401 16,055
Produssional keas purpabla L iFeH 44 2y
it Rt s T4 005 A
Total Lizkilties [Excluding Mol Assets Attributabls to
Moldors of Redesmable Participating Units} b, 522 651,842
Nt Asseta Afiribtabls bo Holders of Redssmabile
Prarticipating Units L 3330537 597255

I bamhell of T Boand of Dyeclom of he Managae

.-'f"' |+ Ty PP ‘[t‘,__';.'.JI {~%‘l};ﬂ
1 {

Dot Dwecior

14 March 2035

Ty ACComguiing Nobas leem anm iniegral port of e Ineeeal stbaemants

11

163/292



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Goldman Sachs Glebal Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024

10 Novernbed 2034 30 Newaenber 2023

Mot uso ugh
Incoms
Dvictorsd inecomis Thy 3, 20 A4, 1080 G
Bl Eosabisad irves BNl |oss ] {6 264 F5d)p [ RO b R N
il charige i Lo D] s B can € gaain a 3684, G0 B S 22
Hel Investment Gain 707,263 3,900,583
Expuiniases
Irmasatmen? Achaser foes I et ] Fal Lk
Audminbuiration and Dhipscailary s ¥ 36 A A
Dstribbion foos ¥ T30 20 Aah
Auperith Iarelanr Py T 0 500 11.245%
Tritreicher Augor| oos L LFAE ) A MG
Pyvdisossorad sk 16 540 bl
s anpannsae T4} 35 A2
Total Exponses EALAFa] S0
Fisimisirssmsnl of s by B et | S st 1 Pl {EH,
Taotal Operating Expenass 595,249 T4 250
Oparating Profit 111,914 3195923
Finance Costs:
Crsibribabiors i Hofders of Rodarem abls Pariiopaing Liniis 11 i A0 1,118 240
Total Finance Conts ML A0 1, 1185840
Ghanges I Met Assats Atributabie (o Holders of
Fedeamable Farticipating Undls from Operations (T18,816) 2 07T 0GR

Cranivs g Lossains alcsa solily froam conrieng avensing aciviles. Thefo wone i gains and kesses alha Tuan thass doall w8 o e
Statensont of Comprehmss ncoma

Oy Irahaall of Bt Bosard ol Dreches of e Managor

) T Y
e ' el
L5 T Do
16 Warch 200

T Ao pairryiig Melos W an Edegial pail of Dw Bhanckl stainmoents
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable
to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024

10 Movembar 2034 20 Howembser 3063

Hofus LSO Lsn
Mt At Al abils to Holidors of Rrdesmatia
Panisoipading Units of Stwt of Yo o, BT 0 2T
Prooseds Foen Hedoemalls Pabopalieng Linds Esiod ] L R L Leonkoik
Praayenasits bon Fndmrnatii Farticgating Lnits Fdaomes] ] (5742 561} (7 1
Chusn b Mol Adaots Asnbefabda 1o Heol@ore of
Resdetrnnble Faricpsing Linits om Operalions (718,916 0T s
Met Assels Amributable to Holders of Redesmable
Participating Units at Year End 28,230,517 TS

Thi AcCHmpaEyIng Notad Kam an ingegral pan of the Bnancial stalamants
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024

1. Grganisation

Gokdman Sachs Global Funds (Iha "Trusl”) is 2 unil rust stabished a3an umbreda fund, The Central Bank
of Ireland (ihe "Contral Bank™) authonsed he Trust under the European Communities [Underiakings for
Cofeclive Imvestment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011, as amended (he "UGITS
Regulations™). The Trust is subject ko the requiremant of the Canlral Bank (Suparvision & Erforcament] Adt
2013 (Section 48] 1)) (Undertakings Tor Collective Investiment in Transfara ble Securities) Regqulations 2018
(the "CBI LICITS Reguiations™).

The Trust has appointed Goldman Sachs Assel Management Fund Sarvices Limited ("GSAMFSL) to be
its Manager Rafer to Mate T for the funclions the Manager undertakas

The Fund imests in Goldman Sachs Ermergng Markets Debl Local Porifolis (the "Masier Sub-Fund’). a
sub-fund of Goldman Sachs Funds SICAN an imestment compary arganised undor the lws of tha Grand
Duchy of Ludembourg as a “Sockde dinvesissement 4 Capital Varabie™,

2. Invesiment Objectives

The invesimant objective of the Fund is a high level of total relurn consisting of income and capital
appreciation. To achieve this objective. all, or substantially all of the procesds of aach class of Units inlhe
Fund will be irvested in thie Class "IX0" shane ciass of the Master Sub-Fund,

Inaddition, a small porton of the Fund may be retained in cash or invesied in Bquid investments for liquidity
purposes and for the purposes of paying any expenses due by the Fund, but such investmants wil not
axcaad 10% of tha Net Assel Value ("MANT) of the Fund.

3. Accounling Policles
{a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statemants

Tha Trust has applsed Fnancial Reporting Slandard 102 ("FRS 1027 “The Financial Reporing Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of lraland”,

The financial statements are prasented in United States Dollars, the Trustls funclional currency. The
praparation of the financial slatements is in actardance with FRE 102, Insh Slatube comprsing the Lini
Trusts Act, 1990 and in accordance with the UCITS Regulalions

Subsequent to the year end the Manager reviewed the viabilty of the Trust Dwe to the continued kow hevel
of assats under management the Manager intends to put the Trust inbx a managed wind down
Tharefare, the financial slatements have been prepared on @ basis ofther than going concem. Mo
adjustmants have been made in these financial statements as a resull of this intantion

Tha proparation of the inancial slatemants requines (he Boand of Direclors of the Managr bo miake cortain
egtimates and assumptions thal may affect the amounts roported i the financial statements and
accompanying noles. Reder 1o 1he Eabailies seclon of the Slatemant of Financial Pesition and Note 4 Tor
instances whene the Board of Directors of 1he Manager was requined 1o make certan astimatas and
assumptions o datermine fair value. Actual results may differ from those estimates, Accounting standard
FRS 102 appled & preparing finkncial slatements ghing a true and fair value @ thal publshed by
Charterad Accountants Irakand and isseed by 1he Financial Reportng Council

Thea firancial slatements have been prepared under Ihe historical cosl commntion as modified by the
revaluation of financial assels and financial labilities hald at fair value through profit or loss.

The format and certain wording of the financial statements has been adapted from those contained in FRS
102, Seclion 3 “Financial Stalement Presentation” so thal, in the opinion of the Manager, they more
appropriately reflec! the nature of the Trusts business as an iwvestment trust in the opinion of the
Managar, the financkal statemants with the noted changes provide the information requined by the Unit Trust
Act, 1950

14
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024 (continued)

3.  Accounting Policles (centinued)
(b Invesiment Transactions, Related Investment Ircome and COperating Expenses

Invesiment Iransactions am recorded on a Imda date basis. Realised gains and lossas are based on tha
Walghted Avarage Cosl mathed

Dividend incorme and dividend expense ara recorded on the ex-dividend date and interest income and
Interest expensa are accrued over the life of the investmant. Interes! mcoma includes accration of markat
discount, original issue discounts and amortisation of premivms and is recorded into income over the lde of
the underiying invesimant. |nderest incoma and dividend income are recognisad on a gross basis before
withholding tax, if any.

Operaling expenses & recognised on an accrual bass,
{c} Transaction Costs

Transaction cosls ame meognised in the Slalement of Comprahansie Income &% parl of nel change in
unrealised invesimant gainfloss) and ned realisad ivesiment gainfloss), Depositary based Irensaclion
C0g1% arn incleded in SAdministration and Depos@ary feas’ in ihe Statemaent of Comprahansig INcome

Transaction costs for ficed incoma investments, forward currency contracts and other dertvathve contracts
exciuding fulures contracts, ara nol separately identifiabda. For these invesiments, iransaction costs ara
included in the purchase and sales price and are part of the gross irvestment perfarmance of each
Portfolio.

{d} Financlal Invastmaent In Sacuritbes and Valuation

Under FRS 102, in accounting for a8 of its financial instrumonts, an entity is required to apply aithes (3} ihe
Tull requingmiants of Seclion 11 "Baséc Financial Instruments” and Section 12 “Othar Financial Irstrumants
Issuas” of FRS 102, (b} the recognibon and measurement provisions of Internalional Accounting
Standards 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognitisn and Measuremant™ (71AS 397} as adopted for use ntha
Euvropean Union and the disclosure requirements of Sactions 11 and 12, or (c} the recognition and
rmeasuremeant provisions of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (CIFR S 9 Financial Instruments”
(IFRS &7 and the disclsure requirements of Seclions 11 and 12. The Trust has elected to apply tha
recagnition and measuremant provisions of 1AS 39 and the disclosure requirements of Sections 11 and 12

) Classification

Afinancial assat or financial Eabdty at fair valwe through profit or kass is a financial asset or liability that s
classified a5 held-for-rading or designated at fair value theough profit or loss. The following financial
investments ame classified as hald-for-trading: collective imvestmant schemas.

Financial assals thal are nol 3l fair value through proft of loss include Bccounts rocohabke. Financial
lizbilitias that are net at fair valee through profit o lss include accounts payable.

fiy  Recognition and Derecognitit

Ther Trusl recognises fimancial assels and financial liabilikes on the date il becomes a parly 1o ihe
conlractual provisions of thi ivesimaent. Purchases and sales of financial assets and financial Kabdities
ara recognised using irde date aceounting, From irade date, any gains and sses ansing from changes in
fair value of the financial asses or financial lE@bllites are recorded in the Statemant of Comprahensive
Income.

Fnancial assals arm derecognisad when tha rights 1o recess cash flows: from the imasimeants have axpired
or the Trust has transfarred subsiantially all risks and rewands of ownership.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024 (continued)

3.  Accounting Policles (centinued)
{dy Financlal Investment in Securitbes and Valuation {continued)

(i) Fair Valve Messwrement Pringiples

Financial assets and financial iabilties at fair value threugh prof@ or loss ane valued in accordance with 1AS
39, Financial assets and financial Eabdities are initlaly recorded at their transaction price and then
measured at fair value subsaqueant to initial recognition. Gains and losses ansing from changes in the fair
value of the Tinancial assets orfinancial liabilties al fair value through profit or loss” category are presentad
in the Statement of Comprehensive income in the parod in which they arise.

Financial assels chassifiod as recobvabls are camed al cost less impairmaent losses. if any Financial
liabilitas, othar than those at fair valee through profil or koss, are meagured &t cost, Financial Bbiities
ansing from Redesmabla Participating Unds issued by the Trust are carmed al the redemplion amoun
rapresanting the wwaslors” nght to a residual amount of thee Trust's Nat Assets Alinbulable 1o Holdars of
Redeamable Participating Units ("Met Assats™),

The fair value of all securities is determined accarding 10 the follwing palicias:

(i 1) Sharas in Colecive Imesiment Funds

The fair valee of irvestments in open-ended investmant funds, compnsing UCITS invesimant funds, is
based upon tha MAY par shara as supplied by the funds, in accordance wilh the valuation policy of tha
applicable Tund a8 outlingd in its prospectus.

(i 2 AN Transferabie Secuinlies

If a quated market price i nol available fram a third-parly pricing service of 8 dealer, of 2 quatation i
balleved to be matenally inaccurate, the fair value of the investment = determined by using valuation
techniguees. Valuation lechmniques inclede the use of recent market transactions, reference (o the cument
fair valpe of ancthar investmant that is substantially the sama, discounted cash flow analyses or amy olhar
techniques that provides & ralEable estimate of prices obtaingd in actual market irangactiong.

Such securities shall be valued at thair probable raalisation value as delarmined by 3 Vales The Valuer i
appointed by the Manager and approved by the Depositary The Valuer during the year ended
30 Movemnber 2024 was Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC and the valuation function was perdormed by Goldman
Sachs Controllers Division ("Controllers™).

Tha imvestments have bean valued in accordance wih generally accepled accounting principles thal may
require the wsa of cartain estmates and assumphions to delermine fair value. Although thesa estimates
and assumplions are based on the best avallable information, actual results could be materially difierent
from thess astimates.

Rafer & mede 4 Tor ihe secunties whara the Vaker wirs used 10 delermine Tair value.

(&} Cash and Bank Overdrafts

Cash and bank ovardrafis are valued al cost, which approximales fair value

{f} Foreign Cumency Translation

Transactions in foreign curmencies are transiated at the foreign currency exchange rate in effect al the dafe
of the lransaction. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated inte WS Dollars at
tha foreign currency closing exchange rate in effect at the year end date. Foreign cummency exchanga
diffarences arising on transiation and realised gains and losses on disposats or settlements of assels and
liabilithes are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Fonesgn cumancy exchangs gams or
losses ralabing to ivestrments at fair value through profit er loss, dervative financial investmants, and all
other foreign currency exchamge gains or ksses refating to monetary itams, including cash and cash
equivalents, are reflected in the nel realsed investmant gainyloss) or net change in unrealised invesiment
gainf{loss) in lhe Statement of Comprehansie Income.
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tah

4.

Accounting Policles (continued)
Finance Costs

Distributions payable on the Redeamable Parlicipaling Unils are recognised in the Statermnent of
Compratanshve Income as Finance Coss

Redeemalble Participating Units

All Redeamable Participating Units issued by the Trust provide the investors with the dght o redeam for
cash at the value proportionale i the imvestionrs share in the Trust's Net Assets on the redemplion date.

In accordance with FRS 102, Section 22 “Liabdites and Equity”, such Units have been classified as a
fnancial liabilty at the vale of the redempton amount i the Statlemen of Financial Position. The Trust &
condractually obliged to redeem Units in accordance with the Prospectus.

Valuation Determined by the Valuer
The Waleer is appointed by the Manager The Valuer ako has direct msponsibilties to the Board of
Dirgclors for cartain valeation functions. which are ulimately reflecied in the financial slatemants. The

Valuar during ha yaar ended 30 November B024 was Goldman Sachs & Co. LLG and the valuation funclion
was perfarmed by Controlors

As at 30 Movember 2024 and 30 Movembear 2023, there were no assels or kabiities whare estimates and
assumptions were usad lo determine fair value.

Tanation

Under current Insh law and practice, the Trust qualfies as an mvesiment undertaking as dedined in
Section 7398 of the Taxes Consclidation Act 1997, as amended. On that basis Irish tax = not chargeabla
to the Trust on its incomea or capital gains.

The Trust will nod be Eable lo lAsh lax in resped of its income and gains, other than on the occurrence of a
chargaable evenl A chargealde evenl includes any distibution to Unilhdlders of ary ancashmeant
mdamplion of iransfes of Lnigs or approprialion of cancallation of Units, or 3 dearmed dispasal of Units
fvery B years baginning from the date of the acquisition of those Units, bul does nol occur in espect of.

{a} Unitholdars who are neithar Irish Resident nor Irish Ordinary Residant for tax purposes at the tima of
the chargeable event and who have provided the Trust with a relevant declaration 1o that effect, and

(b} eortamn eompled nsh e esiden Unihokers who Rave provided e Trus! with tha necassary signad
statutory declarations

A chargeable event does nol includac

{f} any ransachon in relalion i LUings held ina recognsed cleanng system as designated by orderof 1he
Revenus Commisskoners of Ineland:

{ii) anaxchange by a Unitholdar effected by way of an arm’s length bargain whare no paymant is made o
the Unithalder of Units in the Trust far other Unils in the Trust;

iy an exchange of Units ansing on a quakfied amalkgamation or reconstruction of a fund with another
fund, or,

{iv} a transfar by a Linithokder of the entitlement to a Lin whare the transfar is babween spouses and former
spouses, subject o cartain candilions,
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5. Tawatlon (continued)

In thiy absances of an appropriale declaration, e Trust will ba liablka Tor [nsh Gax on the socumencs of a
ehargoable evenl and the Test rsores 18 right 1o withold sush tases frem Unithalders. Capital gains.,
dividends and interes! recaived by the Trust may be subject 1o taxes. including withhalding taxes in the
cauntries inwhich the issuers of ivesimants ame located, which may be ichuded in the NAN of the Trust
Such tanes may not be recoverable by the Trust or its Unithalders,

6. Financial Asssts and Financial Liabdlities al Fair Value through Profit of Loss

Under Amendments to FRS 102, Seclion 34, the Trust is required to classify fair value measurements using
a faif value hierarchy that reflecls tha significance of the inputs usad in making the measuremants. The fair
value hierarchy has the foliewing levels:

Leval 1 = Unadjusted guoled prices i actwe markats that are accessibie at the measuremant dabte for
identical, unrestricied assats or llabiitkes:;

Lewel 2 - Cuated prices in rarksts that are not active or financial instrurnants for which sigrificant inputs
are obsarvable (ncluding bul not limited o quoted prices for simdar securilies, ineres! rales. Tamign
exchangs rles. volaliity and eredit spraads). aither diresty o indirecly Thas may inchude the Valuers'
assumptions in mnrrnining fair value measuramant:

Lewel 3 — Prices or valuations that require signfficant uncbservable inputs (incleding the Valwers'
assumptions in delermining fair value measuramant}.

Tl laval iy [Pl Fanir value hiararchy wilhin which Ihe fair value measunment is categonsed in its anlinaty
shall ba debermingd on the basks of thi lowast leel input that is significant to the talr value measuremant in
its antingdy, For this purpase, the significance of an input is assessed against tha Tair value maasuremant in
ibs entinaty, If a fair value measweament uses cbaanable inputs thal require signilicant ad justrent based on
unobsarvable mpuu. thal maasurament = a Level 3 measuremant Ammg lia 5I-|;n|ﬁl:am afl a
particular input o the fak valee measuremant in #s entirety requires judgement, conskdaring factors
spacilic 1o th 5561 of liability

The Tollowing lables provide an analysis of financial instrumants that are measumed al fair vales in
accordance wilh FRS 102;

30 by 24
Gisbal Ermerging Marots Debl Lecal Fesder Fund
Ll 1 Lawrad 2 Lawwd 3 Tokad
ush 3D u3D L]
Financlal axpels o falr value through profit or less
Irrsnsbmani - Long 4 peeli 6 - . 8 Ll B
Total B, 55 006 = * i a0 30
E s e
Gighal Emerging Markotis Deb! Local Feder Fund
Luree! 4 ] Lwwwi 3 Total
80 U= usn (==
Finmneial svsela of fuir vadue through profit or leas
rsnsimanl - Long 3 B 5 LR L]
Tetal T4, 846,524 = - T Bk S 24
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7. Elgnificant Agresments and Related Parties
Managar

GSAMFSL. a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of Gokman Sachs Group. Inc.. hiss baen appointed as the
Manager of the Trust,

GSAMFSL Is entitied to recelve an annual managemant fee which shall be accrued dally and paid monthly
in arrears. The amount earnad by tha Manager was USD19 998 for tha year undar review (year andad
30 Movernber 2023 USD19,9%88). The Managemant Company fee s included in the Othar Expenses
calegory presanted in the Statement of Comprehansive Incame.

Investimant Adviser and Sub-Investment Adviser

The Manager, on bahalf of the Trust, has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Management intarnaticnal {tha
Amvestrment Adviser), a related party to the Manager as the Iwestment Adviser of the Trust. The
Imvvesiment Advisar has appointed Goldman Sachs Asset Managament Co., Lid as Sub-investmant Adviser
b the Trest, The Investmant Adviser & entitied fe receive a fee of 0.80% per annum of the NAY for its
sarvices, The amount @amed by the Investment Adviser during the year undar reviaw was US0253,340
(year ended 30 November 2023 US04 855).

The Manager has agreed 1o limit the tolal annual fees and expenses (inclading the impact of fees and
mipansas &l tha Master Sub-Fund baval) bo 2.6% per annum of tha MAY of the Fund of i such lassar
amount & the Manager may agree. The Manager and the Investment Adviser have agreed that the
Investrnent Adviser will Feimburss thi SXCesS eXpenses

For the year ended 30 Movember 2024, there were expenses reimbursed of USD3223 772 by the
Imesiment Adviser to the Trust (year ended 30 Novamber 2023: USD185,038).

Thare &ne Mo $ales ChArges in respedt of e purchase or sake of Class IX0" shanes i the Masler Sub-
Fund,

Directors’ of the Manager Remuneration

Ms. Barbara Healy, Ms. Victstia Parry and Me Nicholas Phillips are external Direclors and have no
executive Funclion with the Imvestment Adviser or its rakated party companies. The Manager pays each
external Direclar an annual fee Tor thedr Services as a Direclor of the Manager Ms Barbara Healy and Ms
Vietoria Parry are independant Direclars.

M Bob Van Cwverbeek is a related party to the Investmant Adviser and receles no compensation from the
Trust or the Manager

M Adan Carcoran and Mr John Whiltaker 2ne related parties 10 e Imastment Adviser and receiod no
cormpensation from the Trust, The Manager pays Mr Alan Corcoran and Mt John Whittaker compensation
for inair services as Direclors and as employeas of the Manager,

Adminkstrator

The Truest has appointed Stale Streel Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (iha “Adminsirator) as the ceniral
adminisiration agent of the Fund. The Administrator is responsibla for the administiration of the Trust's
affairs including the calculation of the NAY and tha preparation of the financial statements. The Trust pays
a manthly administration fee. in respact of the provision of administrative. accounting and westor
sarvices. Thisfee is subject b a minimum amount par month. [n addRtion, the Trust pays the Administrator
faas in respect of the prepartion of the audited and financial stalaments of the Trust, a5 wall a5 cortain
faas for investmant Iransactions. These fees shall ba accrued daily and paid generaly manthly in artears
The amounl eamed by the Adminsiaior was USD3E.000 for the year under review (year ended
30 Movembar 2023; LIS035,999)
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7. Elgnificant Agresments and Related Parties (continued)
Depositary

The Trusl has appeinied Stale Streal Custedial Services (Ireland) Limiled o acl as Deposary (ihe
“Dapasitary™) of thi Trusl's assets. The Trustwill pay the Depositary an anneal fea, based on (e Trusts mot
assels. which shall be accrued daily and paid monthiy in amears, Subject 1o a minemum maonthly fee. Tha
amount earned by the Depositary was USDZ.3T3 Tor the year undar review (yaar anded 30 Novembar
2023 UsSDZB11)

Distributer and Agent Member Com pany
The Managar acls as distributor of the Units.

The Manager has appointed Goddman Sachs Japan Co, Lid., a related party to the Trust, to act as
Distributer in Japan

T Manager has appointed Goldman Sachs Assel Managemant Co., Lbd., & relabed party 10 he Trest, o
ach as thip Agent Mamber company in Japan

Thea Trust will pay the Distributor a monthly fee in arrears at an annual rate of 0.80% and the Agent Membear
Company in Japan a monthly fee in arrears at an annual rate of 9.03% of the daily MAV of the Fund. The
amount earned by the Distribulor was WSD0253,340 for the year under review (year anded 30 Movember
2023 USDESS.B55). The amound aarned by the Agant Mamber Company was USDE.500 for the year
under review (year ended 30 Movember 2023 USD11.245).

Reglstrar and Transfar Agent

Thi Manager has appointed CACEIS Bank, Inaland Branch (ihe “Trangfor Agenl’) as regisirar and transior
agent for e Trust pursuant b the Regstrar and Transfer Agent Agreemant betwaen the Trust and the
Transfar Agent. Tha day-Jo-day services provided 1o tha Manager by the Transfer Aganl include recatving
and processing subscriphon and redemption orders, allotting and issuing Units and maintaining the
Unitholder regiater for the Uinits. The Transfer Agent s pald a fee quartary in arrears out of the Met Assets
of the Trust. The amount earmed by the Transfer Agent was U3012,692 for the year under review (year
anded 30 Movembaer 2033 USD37,036).

Valuar
The Directors of the Manager have appointed Goldman Sachs & Go. LLG as its dalegata to act as ha
Valuer and the valualion function was peronmed by Contrallers during the year anded 30 November 2024
ardd yvear ended 30 November 2023, For additienal informalion please refer 16 nala 4.

§. Met Realised Invesbment GainLoss) and Net Change in Unrealised Investmant Galn i Loss)

Thea nat realisad vestment gainf(loss) and net change in unrealised imvestmant gain'{loss) from trading in
fnancial assets and financial liabiities shown in the Statament of Comprahensiva Incoma can ba analysad

as follows!
ER o 3 Mo IRT
uso 13541
L e o e S (204, 264 §8.711 300)
Hut realised irv esimend loas (6,284, T84} {8,711, 204}
[N chaangs i uniaaliss] (gan o InvRirsnts. ] 8502222
Nt changs In alls o by il gl 3,64, 504 LRy
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9. Unit Capital

Th mirimurn inilEl subserplion required in the case of the Trest shal nol be less than USD100, EUR100
or JPYI0.000 uniess otherwise determined by (he Manago:

The ralevant movements on Unil capital are shown on the Statements of Changes in Nat Assels
Altributable to Holders of Redesmabile Participating Units. The Trust imeests the proceeds from the isswe of
Units in appropriate imnvestments while maintaining sufficiant liquidity to meel red amptlions whan necassary

The following tabbas summanse the activity inthe Trust's Units;

I Hatanca al E I Batanca &t
91-Oec-2] | Bubsoiptons | Redempiions | 30N b3
okl Ennbrging Maskols Debt Locsl Feader Fund
Oy Lindl Class 10 EL (185 F S
ELIR Ll Classs M.500 {055 10444
Yeen Uinét Class. 140, 353 M 0,525 13607
Oy Lirsl Clase Desinbagion 5503005 My i1 2 a5 4 104 247
Todal sA4T2,072 12500 | (1256809 | 4847751
Bafanes Bl Bshanes o

01 Dec-3i3d | Sussoaiglions | Radempliors | 33-Nov-3033

Global Emarging Marksts Debt Local Fesder Fund

Dy Ll Class 128,84 5,008 {17,508 116271
LR Uit Class 2007 {3,147 21 500
Y il Gl 170G 1.521 (37,3743 1490 3%
Cpderiay Uit Closs Destrbstion i, 7 B0 b ga (16 B3 | BSRA008
Tedal 7124507 4T 481 | (1600.916) | S6TROTZ
10, HAV

Tha following lables summarnise the total NAY and the MAV per Uinit of each Unit Class:

Ghobal Emerging Markety 30-Mava0dd

Dotk Local Fasder Furs AV WAV Por Ui
Cydnay Linal Class LIS 8 8L el LESD 104053
ARG Lt Class ELRE 2 727973 ELAR 140,30
e Lindl Class JPY RS NG JEY G S
vy Lvdl Clags Destibaution RS0 10,82 250 LD 257
‘Glghal Emerging Markofs 0 Maw-F033

Dotk Local Fasder Fued HAY AV Pur Uit
Oy Ll Class LD 11 885 157 LED 100,33
ELNR Link Class EUR 2,914,312 ELRR 135,50
sy Uil Cl i JPY 132 B06. 755 Y 5 220 70
iy Uil Class Distlsdion LESEY B4 7605 308 LD P 74
Gtabat Emerging Markets 20 Mo 2022

Gt Local Faedor Fursd AV WAV Por Ui
Cpdiniery Unit Class LRSED 11 B 270 LBSED 652 4
ELNE Ll Clasan LR, 5 2254 R EUR 15210
Yon Uné Class JFRY 708 335,300 IV 4 53043
Dedirusty Livll Clage Deglrilsution LIS 16 504 640 LIS 26D
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11, Dividends

Tha Fund may deckarg and distribute dividends o Unitholders holding tha Ordinary Linil Class Digribution
out of its riet Incoma andfor oul of its realksed and unralised profits ees realsed and unealised REses
andfor aut of capdial {in order 1o provide flexibility 1o the Manager) attrbutable 10 that Una Class for the
ralevant paried. Tha Ordinary Una Class may daclane and dislribute dividends on a monlhly bases

The following dividends were daclarad by the Fund during the year endad 30 Novembar 2024:

Cadinary Unil Olass Distributian

ExData Pay-Dats Deacrigtion U
L] F ] Covicharsd of LESD 0005 per Uil rape
VIO A B M Costedorsd of LISD 0045 per Lt [CAr
1SIRANN A Dotk of LS G 05 per Linil 73448
100 2GR0 Dedclorsd al LIS 0005 per Ll T20re
L] 1AM Doevtcdered of LESD 004 S per Linit 0,5
15 O 2N Devicdord of LIS 000405 per Lirst 0,264
AT U0 Dodcdared ol LIS 0005 pti Ll 50 (48
VRITTA VTR0 Doevtcdored of LESD 0015 per Uil AF 11
TR M Cdchered ol LRS00 OB peaar Ll 4 5l
1 20 Covichersd of LSS0 00045 per Linit A 20
1SR Ll Dedclored ol LSO 0045 por Lirat 4270
14117k FETATM Dpicksrec of LEST 0004 & per Linit i (i

The fallowing dividends were dectaned by the Fund during the year endad 30 November 2023

m—,wﬁ-taudw

ExData Py Data Dstrigtion S
15HIHFE Fiuy Forared Dodeckored ool LESLE O 0H S pesr Lt aF T
RIS Fatiii fraeriad Dwvicdorsd of LESD (005 per Lt 6 fifil
1SQRrA0ES Pl Deicdored of LISD 00405 poe Lirnt 97 M7
TOEANES WO Deacdend of LRS00 085 per Linit A
RIS i raer] Detctorsd ol LISE 00405 paw Lirsl 97 838
15105703 TR Cedackared ol LIS 0005 pid Uil o024
1 S Pl raarad Dpvieckared of LISD 0.0 5 peor Linit 2 Bk
18I0TTAFY HITIAEE Db ol LR 0 00 E peer Livui 1 640
RIS £ NS Dvicdared of LISD 0015 par Uit [ F s
50 S AR Ditdared of LISD 0 045 pes Livit aF BT
V6 ANKES QL [ranriat Diestdarsd of LD (.05 per Linil i il
LEE D e ) FOINI0EE Dechared of LISD 0.00S pad Livat o A0

12, Financlal Investments and Assoclated Risks
Tha Fund invesis all, or substantially all, of its assels in the Masber Sub-Fund, as cutlined in Naba 1.

Tha Fund's imneesting actvities throwgh tha Master Sub-Fund expase it bo various types of nsks thal are
associaled with the financial imvestments and markeds in which it and the Master Sub-Fund invest (tha
TImvasirmant Risks’),

Thir Fund's irvestmant portiolio is comprisaed of collgctive irnvesirmant schemes al year end. The Board of
the Manager has appainted the Investment Adviser b manage tha investment risks of the Fund. The main
bypes of finansial disks which the Fund is exposed to threugh the Master Sub-Fund are marked risk. lkquidity
fisk @ Gredd risk. The Prospectus provides detaits of thase and other types of risk, same of which are
addilinal o thal informalion provided in these financal salaments
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12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)

Thear risk Fanagarmant policies employed in rekation o the Fund am oullined balow.
(s} Markel Risk

The potential for changes in the fairvaiue of the Fund’s investmant in the Master Sub-Fund is refarred to as
market risk. Commonly used categones of market rsk include cumency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk.

(i} Curmeney risks may resull from eXxposures 1o changes in spal prices, fonward prices and volatilites of
CUTTanGY rales

{ii) Interastrate risks may result from exposures lo changes in the bavel, slope and curvature of the various
yield curves, the volatilty of infaras! rates, morlgage prapayment speeds and cradit spreads.

(liiy Other price risks are the sk that the value of an investment will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market pricas othes than those arising from currency risk or inberes! rabe risk and may resull from
eXpOSUres to changes in the prices and volatidies of Individual equities, equity baskels, equity indices
and commoditias.

The Master Sub-Fund's markel risk siralegy i driven by its investment risk and relurn ctjectives.

Markel risk is managed through the application of risk budgeding principles. The Investment Adviser
daterminges an appropriale risk largel, commonly refarred to as Tracking Error amplaying a risk budgating
framewrk

The AM Risk Management group at Goldman Sachs (AM Risk”) is resporsible for overall nisk governance
struciure and establishing appropriate rsk managament bast practices. The risk governance siruclura
inciudes identifying. maasuring, monitoring, escataling and remediating applicable rsks. AM Risk uses 3
number of sk melncs o monitor sk including monitonng sensithiles, volatilily and Valse at Risk
("VaR"}). Tha team prasents or provides writhen matarials on the risks 1o the Board of Tha Manager no less
frequantly than semi-annueaily

AN Risk has takan the decision to align the shocks used in FRS 102 sensitivities calculations with the
regulalory-prescribed shocks in Form-PE as delermined by the SEC. for consistancy and to streamline
reparting. AM Risk will review the shocks petiodically and revise as netessary

i) Currency Risk
Thie Fund and thi Masler Sub-Fund's basa comancy is USD (haralfons the Fund had no direc! curmancy risk
expasune. The Master Sub-Fund. in which the Fund invests. may iwest in finandial imnvestments and entar
inta trarsactions dencminated in curmncies other than its furctional currency, Consequently, the Master
Sub-Fund may bé exposed 1o risks that the exchange rmle of its functional currency relalive to siher Taraign
cunrencies may change ina manner thal has an advarse effect an the value of thal portion of thi Mastar
Sub-Fund's assets or Eabilies denominaled in curmancies olher than the Tunclional curmancy

When an irvesbor imeests into a Unit class which is in a different currency to the functional currency of tha
Fund in which & invesis. the curmency risk of the imestor will be different to the currency risk of the Fund.

Th Tollowing tables sof farth a sensitiity anatysss showing gaing and Ksses in the Master Sub-Fund that
would b associabed with changas in th curmancy markats, Thig sensitivity analysis s based on a changa
in one currancy versus the base currency of the Masber Sub-Fund while holding all other currencies
caonslant. For the Master Sub-Fund, monatary and non-monelary, the assumplion s thal all currencies
move simuBanecusly against the base currency of the Master Sub-Fund.

i3
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024 (continued)

12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk (continued)

(i Currency Risk {continued)
At 30 Novembar 2024 the marke! mowvas for currancies represant a =/~ 20% move (as at 30 Movembear

2023+ 20%).
Currancy Risk an ot J-Mav-I00d
Rans Cuwsrancy ks US0
Irgaet on MAY fad 305 Base Curfensy
Crarangy Apgreciaiion Capracist-an
L [22%) 2%
MYR [ 4r's) Fdi
Lk [15%) 18%
FAR (16%) 1. "%
T {1.5%) 1.5%
e 9% W
Todal (1B, 1% 15.2%
Currancy Rish as o JoNavdind
(B TueTanay = USD
I et & AV Bed D' Bass Cursy
CraT enay Bperd i mben Ciper ai siion
WX {15%) 1%
EUR 4% (2 1%
[F 2 0%) %
[ {2 %) iy
MY REGT] 1%
Ottrer (15 %) 0%
Todal (20.9%) 15.4%

Tha abowe analysis Bustrates gains and lossas in the Master Sub-Fund thal are associated wilh changes
in the currency market that are reasonably possible over a one-year period. These do not include stress
scenaris whan market mowes and changes in cormelations and liquidity may result in larger ovarall gains or
losses.

i) Interest Rate Risk
T Fund irvests direcily into the Master Sub-Fund and tharafons hid no dinect inleras! rbe sk eoposure
The Master Sub-Fund. inwhich the Fund invests, may invest in fixed income securities. Any change tothe
malevant intarasl rates for particular securitias may result in the Investment Adviser being unable 1o secura
similar returns on the expiry of the contracts of the sale of securitas. In addition, changes 1o prevailing
intaras! rales or changes in expectations of fulure rbes may resull in an increase or decrease in the value
of Ihe securities hakd, Ingenaral. if interest rates mse, the value of the fived intome sacurilies will decline.
A decling in interast rates will in generl hive [he opposite affact. All fixed income Securitios and foaling
Fbe SRcumties, [opether wilh thedr coupon and matunly dite ane disclosed in the Schiedule of Investmants
ol 1ne Masler Sub-Fund

Thea Master Sub-Fund may invest in instruments in desired curmancies at fixed, fioating and zero rates of
intanast.

Tl Tolbonwineg L Db Sl Tortn U inderest rate eXpOSURGS FOr VAROWS CUPMENG S in thi: Masber Sub-Fund and
gaing and lassas thal are assecialed with changas in the inferpat rales. This sensibivity analysis o based on

a change in Ihe Interest rates applicable 1o one currancy while holding all other interest rates constant, For
the Total Portfolie, the assumgtion s that all interest rbes move simultanacusly by the same number of

4
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024 (continued)

12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk (continued)

() Interest Rate Risk {continwed)
basis points ("bps”). A paralel shift of 50bps or 125bps means that all interest rates along a curve will
change by aither a 50bps to 125bps ncrease or decrease (i.e. a 0.50% or 1.25% increase or dacreasa).

At 30 Novembar 2024 a posihianegative paralial shalt for interes! rates rapresant @ +L75bps (a8 at
30 Novernbar 2023 +/-T5bps) paraliel Shift in the yisd curve for developed interest rales and a «-750ps (a8
at 30 Novembar 2023 +/.T5bps) parabied shift in the yield curve for emarging markels interest rates.

Irftarast Aata Risk an o 10:-Kav 3034
Impaci on HAY lor paraiiel sl
Cuarengy Higher Lgagr
CHY 0 %) [
[1Ee] 0 5% 0%
FAR kA L1
MYR 10 5%} 0.5%
[ 0.3 = ] oo%
Dt (1.6%) 1.f%
Total Portfodin: [4.4%) 4TS
irtareat Pabe Mk o ot 30-Kew- 2033
Impact on MAV for paralial whesy
Curtandy Higher Liwid
LY 9.7%) LN
[i5) [0 5%) [
THE {0 5%} 5%
AR 10 %) 5%
MYR 0 4%) 5%
Dt 1.7%) 18%
Todal Paatfadic [4.3%) 4.5%

Thop abov analysis lusirales gaing and lases hal ane a5s0cizled wilh changes in the infonest rale manked
il ane ngagonably possibie and exclude changes in he sopa of bolR INterest and credil curves. Thise
soc@narkas alko do not inclede slress scananos whan markal moves and changes in cormedations and
liquid ity may rasult in larger overall gains of losses.

(I} Qdhar Price Risk

Cithver price risk is the risk that the value of a financial investmant will flecteate as a result of changes in
markel prices, olner Inan hose ansing from curnency nsk or inlanest rale nek whether caused by factors
spacific o an indévidual imvestment, its issuer or any faclor affecting financial ivestmants traded in tha
market.

As the Master Sub-Fund's financial irvesiments ane carded at fair valwe with fair value changes recognised
in ther Staterment of Comprahensie Income, all changas in markel conditions will directly affec! Mel Assels
Adiributable to Holders of Redeamable Parhicipating Linits,

The Fund's ivestments in collective investment schemes are based upon the NAV per share as supplied
by the collective investment schames, in accordance with the valuation palicy of the applicabla mutual fund
as ouliined in s prospectus. While it is axpacted that the assets of the coBective imestment schemes will
generally be valued by an indapendant third-party admingsirator or clher service provider, thare may be
circumslancas in which carlain securities or other assats of a collective irvestment schemea may not have
a readity ascertainable markel prce. In such circumstances, the manager of the relevant collactiva
ivestmant schema may be required o value such securilies or insnuments.

5
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024 (continued)

12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk (continued)

(i} Cdher Price Risk (continued)
The Fund has na significant exposura to other price risk thraugh s imvestmant in the Mastar Sub-Fund.

Curmency. interas! mbe and olhar pRce fisks ane managed by 1he Master Sub-Fund's [mvestment Adviser as
part of M inlegrated markel fisk Managamant processes dascnbed abave

(¥} Limitations of Sensitivity Analysis
Soma of tho Emilations of the sensilivily analysis 1ables above include:

» e analysis is based on hislorical data and cannot take account of the fact that fulure market prica
mawements. cormelations between markets and lewels of market liguidity may bear no relation fo
histerical patberns;

« he analysis is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precse and accurale numbes,

« the analysis represants a hypothatical culcome and is nat intended 1o ba predictive; and

+  fulure markal conditions could vary significantly from those experiancad in the pasl.

i) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficully in meeting obligations associated with
fmancial liabdiies thal are setiled by delivering cash or anoiher financial assal. Among other things liquidity
could be impaired by an inability to access secured and for unsecurad sourcas of financing. an inabdity fo
sall assels or unforesean outfiows of cash or collateral.

Thes sitvabion may arse duee to circumsiances oulside of the Fund's contred, such as a general markel
disruption ar an oparational problam affecting the Fund or third parties. Also, tha abilty to sell assats may
b bmpaingd i1 olher market participants arg seeking 1o Sell $imikar 255018 at ihe Same tirmde.

The Fund's imestmant in the Master Sub-Fund may impide greater nasnclions on redemptions than those
imposed by the Fund. This may include offering less frequent redemplion dates than are offered by tha
Fund 1o its Unithakdars.

Tha Fund provides for the subscription and rede mplion of Units and it is themefore exposed to the liquidity
fisk associaled with Unitholder redemplions in accordance wilh the terms in tha Prospecius. These larms
include the discration o pay redempticn distributions in cash of in kind of be limit redampbions to 10% of 1he
NAY on any dealing day, Whare redemption distributions are in kind the Unitholder may reques! that the
Ivesiment Adviser sell the assels and distribube the cash procaeds to the Unitholder

The Fund's prospecius provides for the daily subscrption of Units and the daily redemplon of Units. The
Fund is Iharefore eoposed 1o the liquidity risk of meating Unilhalder redemplions.

The Directors of the Manager may have certain liquidity management tools available o them whare
parmitted by the Fund's prospacius and constitutional documents and where they consider the imposition
of such tools o be in the bast inlerests of bolh remaining and redeeming imnvestors. This may include tha
application of redemplion gates, tempomary suspension of redemplions or the imposition of liquidity
chargas (subject to any required approvals of the regulalor and engagement with wnithalders).

A5 at 20 Novembar 2024, the Fund's irestreent in the Master Sub-Fund s 3.82% of e Master Sub-
Fund's Mel Assats (as al 30 November 2023 3.90%),

1781292



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024 (continued)

12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)
(b Liguidity Risk (continued)

The faliowing labkas sel forth datails of (he Unithaiders with haldings graatar than 10% of the Fund's Ne!
Assels Afrbutabie 1o Holders of Redeamable Participating Linis,

Goldman Sache Emerging Markels Debl Local Feedor

-bew-F034 30 Maw- 3033
Urithabder 11 61 .05% Lirdthyol der 17 7. 2M4%
Uil ' TR Lruthwod iy 22° 41 60%
Other Linitholders 120% Cfhwr Lbntiholcders 1 1E%
Tetal 100,00% Tatal 100, 0%

"Lyt bwsbder b g ol rdaton

Mode: Unitholders are shown in erder of halding at the specific year end 5o Unithalder 1 on 30 Novembar
2024 may not be the same as Unitholder 1 on 30 Movember 2023.

As al 30 November 2024 and 30 November 3323, financial liabilles were generaly payable within three
manths of year and,

(=} Credit Risk

Cradi and counterparty risks ane the risk thal one party to a financial investmant will cause a financial loss
fior the aither party by failing to discharge an oblgation.

Frocedures have been adopbed o reduce credil risk related o its dealings with counlarpariies. Belora
transachng with any coumterparty, the Irvestment Adviser or s related parlies evaluabe both credd.
worthiness and reputaton by conducting a cred® analysis of the party, their business and reputation. The
cradif risk of approved countarpartias is then monitored on an cngaing basts, including parodic reviews of
financial statements and inerim financial reports as needed.

T Fund, @nd the Master Sub-Fund in which il irests, are subjed 10 a number of sk relating 1o tha
ingohiency, administration, Bquidation or other formal prolection from credilons (Tnsehency™) of Ihe
Dapositary. Thisa risks mclude withoul limitation:

1. Tha loss of all cash held with the Depositary which is not being treated as clant monay at the kevel of
thea Depositary {"clant momay™).

2. Tha less of all cash which the Depositary Rag failed 1o treal as clent monay in accordancs wilh
procadures (if any) agreaed with the Trust,

3. Thelossof some orall of any securilies hiekd on trust which have nol been propaerly segregaled and 5o
idenlified both at the level of the Deposttary ("Trust Assels?) or clent money held by or with tha
Depositary

4, Tha loss of soma or all assets due 10 the incomect operation of accounts by the Depositary or due o
the process of idantidfying and trarsfering the relevant Trust Assats andior client money including any
deduction o meet the administrative costs of an insolvency.

5. Losses caused by prolonged delays in recaiving transfers of batances and regaining contrel cver the
relkevant #5sets.

An insolvency could cause severa disruption to the Fund's investment activity. in some clrcumstances, this
could cause the Directors of the Manager o lempomanily suspand the calculation of the NAV and dealings
in Units.

k1)
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024 (continued)

12, Financial Investments and Assoclated Risks (continued)

() Credit Risk (continued)
Al 30 Mowarnbes 2024 and 30 November 2023, the follewing financial assets of the Fund ware expasad fo
cradit sk irvestmanls, cash and othar recaivabdes. The carrying amounts of financial A5sets boest mfect
B madimum cradit risk exposune al the mporting dabi,

Tha maxsmum exposure lo credil sk as at the reporling date can be analysad as follows:

b I -Mew 1031
Assoln usg [
rmstmonts - Long 2 0 O30 A B
Candy - 075
Roimburssmont om isestmant Adviser 145 918 41,116
IRptveabiban for inmamanis sokd 36,107 50 463
Tolal Assets 18,719,050 15,240,008

The Labde bekw Sels frth concenlrations of countarparty of ssuar credil risk greater than 5% of the Ned
Assols atiribulable 1o holders of redeemable participaling unis:

Wik aitded 19Ny -1004 oedi erelindd PR-Moe-2323

et %ol
Mei Hel

nWEuan Eagacity Awnals Iratiution Capasty Bty

Gotfiman Saclms Goddman Sachs

Emneaping Marikots Dubt E mssrgpirsg M kots kst

Losizil P oo (s saslsbrsd] Lozl P Bl i il himel

af Goldman Sachs Funds | Inssstment of Goddman Sachs Funds | westment

HIIGA\IT‘ B 100 B0%% ﬁl.'..ﬁ.'.l'}' LT 100 7%

"Foelatwd Franty to Ciobdimean Sachn Ghobal Funds

Mo counbenparises or Bsuers are rabed below invesiment grade, Counlerpanias of issuers an either raled
irvestmant grade i their swn right of f nel reled then an enlity in (he corperala Family ee has such a
raling and thix Cradit Risk Managomont and Advisory deparinmant of the Invesimant Adviser boBoves tharo
i sirong implcit support from the rated antity 1o thi counterparty

{dy Additional Risk

{iy Sustainability Risk

Sustainability nsk s defined In Article 3 of Regulation (EU} 2019/2088 (the “Sustainable Finance
Disclosure Regulation”) as an emvironmental, social or govermance event or condition, that if it cccurs
could cause an aclual o a polential material negatie impact on the value of the imasimant Plaase mfar
o Unaudited Reports of the Management Compary 1l Sustainable Finance Disclesure Reguiation
("3FDR") Disclosures and EU Taxonomy Regulation Tor information on the integration of sustainability
risks in our Ewasiment decision-making process,

Additional details of risks nol disclosed in these Financial Stalemants, such as oparmtional or olhar risks,
can be found in the Prospactus.

K2
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024 (continued)

13, Credit Institution

14,

15

16,

17,

18,

14,

Cash and Bank ovardrafts ane hakd ab thi follawing instilution:

10 I ]

[T [T ol et [T ol el

Courtmparty Asnely Asuoiy
Sate Shoet Bank and Toust Company {B) fap {240 (0.01%) R 0.00r%
Total {2405} (0.01%) Lis] 0%

() Urwestraad - DeposBary Cash Accou
{2 Stele Strest Bank arvd Trust Gompany aci & (he Global Dopositary lof tha Dopositany

Cash Flow Statement

The Trust has elected (o apply the exempbion avakable to open-ended investment funds under FRS 102,
Section 7 “Statement of Cash Flows™, not to prepare a cash fiow statement.

Staterment of Changes In the Portfollo

The Matenial Sub-Fund Changes mfiect the aggregale purchases of & security axcesdng one per cenl of
the lotal value of purchases for the period and aggregate disposals greater than one per cent of the total
value of the sales. Tha Material Portfalis Changes afe shown on page 31

Exchange Rates

The following exchange mtes (against the USD) were usad to comert the irvestiments and other assats
and liabiities danominated in curmencies other than the LISD:

Gurranay by 2034 EETE L

usg [t
Earns (ELIR} 0 BT el
Japsnvisia Yan [1PY) 150 15000 147 AIG0DH

Soft Commissions and Directed Brokemge

Thea Fund did not enler inte any third party soft commission arrangements, of pay commissions for
resgarch andior execution for the year anded 30 November 2024 and year endad 30 Nowember 2023,

Contingent Liabilities

Thara were no contingant liabilites as at 30 Movember 2024 and 30 Movember 2023,
Prospecius

Tha latest Prospectus of the Trus! was ssued on 1 November 2023,

Flgniicant Events during the year

CACEIS Inveslor Services Ireland Limited was rebranded as CACE|S Bank, Ireland Branch effective 1
Juna 2024

Thera have been no other significant events affecting the Trust durdng the financial year ended
30 Movembar 2024,

Fi
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Goldman Sachs Global Funds
Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 November 2024 (continued)

21, Subsequent Evenls
Subsaquant 1o the year and M Managar reviawed (he vEabiEhy of the Trust Dua 1o B continuad bow gl
of assels under managemant the Manager infends 10 put the Trust into a managed wind down. Tharefore,
the financial slalements hawve been prapared on a basks other than going concern. Mo adpusiments hava
bean made in thesa financial stalemants as a result of thes intention
Thara have bean no other signdicant evants affecting the Trust since 30 November 2024,

22, Indemnifications

The Trust may enler inte comracts that contain a vanely of indemnfications. Thi Trests masimum
Wposune undor these arrangemonts is unknown. However the Trust has not had prer claims or keses
pursuant to these condracts,

23, Approval of the Audited Financlal Statements

The Board of Direclors of 1he Manager approved the Audited Finand il Statements on 18 March 2025,
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Goldman Sachs Emerging Markets Debt Local Feeder
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 November 2024

Falr Walise %ol
Heoldings Dasaription LFSD st Assets
LECATS Irvwastenant Funds
Uit ed States Dodlar
Goddmesn Sacte Emonpag Markats Dokl Locsl Posticlio - Clegs “1K0" Shawes
19067357 Clas'uis T 550058 100 B0
Totsl UCITS lnwveatnesnt Funds 28,556,008 AB0BD
Total lnyetmants - Lang 2,556,018 AB0.E0
Tk Mew-2024 0-Mov-2021

Falr Yaluee % of Falr Valus % of
Tatal bnvestmants: LSO et Aasels usD Mat Assels
Fodlinl Braeesdeninnls 246,500 035 104 B 34 8406 53 100 72
Cathwer Asmols s | akilies [t 1 {0 By 240 M) {0 TR
Mt Aasels ARiribadable to Holders of
Rt wiva sl e Prasrtlclpabing Lindia 28,330,537 100.00 34,557 355 Abb00
Analysis of Total Asssts (Unaudited) % of Tolal Asasls %% of Total Asssts
LECITS. Iwsmstmeant F unds ik A 5 Sl
Colla Cameinil Asiils o 114
Total Asasts 104000 180,00

B A ol anaed parfy o e T

Bl P P o cnmated 1 S ren-irmmatmanl Adegdry Bee Daad ey shaes dass of e Madle Sob-Forsd

Thi acHBpayIng Notad Kam an ingegral pan of the Bnancial stalamants
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2024 11 30

702,717,024 105,070,249
27,246,474 4,073,893
93,879 14,037
4,712,377 704,595
3,464,717 518,044
8,413,493 1,257,985
13,632,980 2,038,403
16,614,985 2,484,273
5,084,627 760,253
2,226,463 332,901
138,731 20,743
16,091,334 2,405,976
624,735 93,410

166 25
801,061,985 119,774,788
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2,164 324
6,470,000 967,394
34,129,173 5,102,994
6,953 1,040
2,305,637 344,739
1,864,016 278,708
9,302,832 1,390,959
4,624,566 691,465
88,647 13,254
300,238 44,892
361,495 54,051
55,132 8,243
182,125 27,231
1,642 246
108,731 16,257
12,315 1,841
8,457 1,264
44,324 6,627
200,620 29,997
60,069,067 8,981,527
740,992,918 110,793,261
740,992,918 110,793,261
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2024 11 30

3,296,151 492,840
47,998,392 7,176,720
8,031,872 1,200,926
673 101

2,602 389
59,329,690 8,870,975
10,000 1,495
691,886 103,451

67 10
5,123,973 766,136
445,931 66,676
228,226 34,124
21,837 3,265
112,927 16,885
93,825 14,029
29,515 4,413
315,108 47,115
7,073,295 1,057,599
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7,073,295 1,057,599
781,447 116,842
51,474,948 7,696,534
(43,873,163) (6,559,915)
(235,091) (35,151)
(9,259,444) (1,384,472)
363,158 54,299
11,937,212 1,784,852
(41,067,328) (6,140, 387)
13,208,304 1,974,906
38,625 5,775
(1,079,919) (161,469)
(18,148,811) (2,713,610)
8,249,629 1,233,485
814,022 121,713
3,081,850 460,798
13,489,470 2,016,946
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2024 11 30

887,076,858 132,635,732
101,026,057 15,105,416

(231,422,719) (34,602,325)

13,489,470 2,016,946

(29,176,748) (4,362,507)

2024 11 30 740,992,918 110,793,261
740,992,918 110,793,261
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2024 11 30

91.03
76,643,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10 000 01/01/2025 13,172,164 1.78
60,666,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10 000 01/01/2027 9,763,474 1.32
93,479,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10 000 01/01/2029 14,333,756 1.93
12,867,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10 000 01/01/2031 1,896,560 0.25
40,000,000 Brazil Notas do Tesouro Nacional-Series F BRL 10 000 01/01/2033 5,471,756 0.74
44,637,710 6.02
15,360,000,000 Izz;os de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos cLp 5 800 01/10/2029 15,883,103 2 14
755,000,000 Iz(;;os de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos cLp 4 700 01/09/2030 746,901 0.10
2,075,000,000 Iéz;os de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos cLp 6 000 01/04/2033 2,191,138 0.30
2,245,000,000 Bonos de la Tesoreria de la Republica en pesos CLP 5 000 01/03/2035 2,222,273 0.30
21,043,415 2.84
48,767,000,000 Colombian TES-Series B CoP 5 750 03/11/2027 10,065,828 1.36
18,623,000,000 Colombian TES-Series B COoP 6 000 28/04/2028 3,786,419 0.51
84,069,600,000 Colombian TES-Series B COoP 7 000 26/03/2031 16,085,838 2.17
67,893,800,000 Colombian TES-Series B cop 13 250 09/02/2033 17,472,929 2.36
47,411,014 6.40
177,510,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 103 CZK 2 000 13/10/2033 6,391,217 0.86
258,350,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 120 CZK 1 250 14/02/2025 10,742,949 1.45
61,230,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 121 CZK 1 200 13/03/2031 2,202,273 0.30
76,100,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 125 CZK 1 500 24/04/2040 2,252,516 0.30
415,860,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 130 CZK 0 050 29/11/2029 14,606,333 1.97
156,790,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 138 CZK 1 750 23/06/2032 5,694,823 0.77
26,840,000 Czech Republic Government Bond-Series 94 CZK 0 950 15/05/2030 974,893 0.13
42,865,004 5.78
88,650,000 Dominican Republic International Bond DOP 11 250 15/09/2035 1,589,166 0.22
119,750,000 Dominican Republic International Bond DOP 10 750 01/06/2036 2,086,179 0.28
3,675,345 0.50
1,448,670,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 25/B HUF 5 500 24/06/2025 3,694,141 0.50
231,390,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 27/A HUF 3 000 27/10/2027 543,580 0.07
2,892,570,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 30/A HUF 3 000 21/08/2030 6,389,799 0.86
4,888,100,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 32/A HUF 4 750 24/11/2032 11,437,360 1.55
1,510,290,000 Hungary Government Bond-Series 33/A HUF 2 250 20/04/2033 2,887,307 0.39
24,952,187 3.37
700,340,000 India Government Bond INR 5 850 01/12/2030 7,896,065 1.07
1,255,000,000 India Government Bond INR 7 100 08/04/2034 15,127,506 2.04
687,450,000 India Government Bond INR 7 300 19/06/2053 8,402,313 1.13
31,425,884 4.24
75,398,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond IDR 6 500 15/07/2030 4,700,000 0.63
185,512,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series 100 IDR 6 625 15/02/2034 11,534,329 1.56
11,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR64 IDR 6 125 15/05/2028 683 0.00
306,457,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR71 IDR 9 000 15/03/2029 20,932,293 2.83
73,400,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR72 IDR 8 250 15/05/2036 5,073,934 0.69
42,633,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR74 IDR 7 500 15/08/2032 2,783,724 0.38
111,556,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR80 IDR 7 500 15/06/2035 7,291,371 0.98
73,187,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR83 IDR 7 500 15/04/2040 4,835,922 0.65
160,221,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR87 IDR 6 500 15/02/2031 9,945,456 1.34
15,673,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond- Series FR91 IDR 6 375 15/04/2032 962,270 0.13
33,392,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR93 IDR 6 375 15/07/2037 2,035,329 0.28
12,077,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR97 1DR 7 125 15/06/2043 769,009 0.10
68,813,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-Series FR98 IDR 7 125 15/06/2038 4,404,827 0.59
75,269,147 10.16
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266,000,000 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 8 500 01/03/2029 12,547,404 1.69
166,296,000 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 8 500 31/05/2029 7,831,222 1.06
218,609,500 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 7 750 29/05/2031 9,742,596 1.31
336,142,400 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 7 750 23/11/2034 14,278,557 1.93
307,461,800 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 10 000 20/11/2036 15,219,355 2.05
114,906,000 Mexican Bonos-Series M MXN 7 750 13/11/2042 4,481,727 0.61
64,100,861 8.65
860,000 Banco Latinoamericano de Comercio Exterior SA usb 2 375 14/09/2025 839,558 0.11
20,930,000 Peru Government Bond PEN 5 940 12/02/2029 5,750,607 0.78
46,040,000 Peru Government Bond(a) PEN 7 300 12/08/2033 13,050,282 1.76
18,800,889 2.54
40,900,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 1026 PLN 0 250 25/10/2026 9,244,143 1.25
10,425,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 1029 PLN 2 750 25/10/2029 2,301,576 0.31
52,175,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 1030 PLN 1 250 25/10/2030 10,274,110 1.39
57,045,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 428 PLN 2 750 25/04/2028 13,079,205 1.77
44,125,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 432 PLN 1 750 25/04/2032 8,479,360 1.14
46,520,000 Poland Government Bond-Series 727 PLN 2 500 25/07/2027 10,775,892 1.45
54,154,286 7.31
16,925,000 Romania Government Bond-Series 10Y RON 4 150 24/10/2030 3,083,148 0.41
49,080,000 Romania Government Bond-Series 10Y RON 6 700 25/02/2032 10,114,331 1.36
27,230,000 Romania Government Bond-Series 2Y RON 6 300 28/01/2026 5,753,623 0.78
27,290,000 Romania Government Bond-Series 4Y RON 7 200 28/10/2026 5,828,557 0.79
16,600,000 Romania Government Bond- Series 5Y RON 6 300 25/04/2029 3,402,250 0.46
15,440,000 Romania Government Bond- Series 7Y RON 8 000 29/04/2030 3,385,218 0.46
31,567,127 4.26
233,000,000 Serbia Treasury Bond-Series 12.5 RSD 4 500 20/08/2032 2,062,657 0.28
1,203,910,000 Serbia Treasury Bond- Series 8Y RSD 7 000 26/10/2031 12,296,476 1.66
14,359,133 1.94
6,430,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2030 ZAR 8 000 31/01/2030 343,183 0.05
392,025,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2032 ZAR 8 250 31/03/2032 20,272,343 2.73
45,374,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2035 ZAR 8 875 28/02/2035 2,316,522 0.31
418,990,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2037 ZAR 8 500 31/01/2037 20,028,731 2.70
412,617,300 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2040 ZAR 9 000 31/01/2040 19,806,110 2.67
135,540,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2044 ZAR 8 750 31/01/2044 6,208,276 0.84
95,540,000 South Africa Government Bond-Series 2048 ZAR 8 750 28/02/2048 4,356,243 0.59
296,800,000 South Africa Government Bond- Series R209 ZAR 6 250 31/03/2036 12,050,532 1.63
266,320,000 South Africa Government Bond- Series R213 ZAR 7 000 28/02/2031 13,193,877 1.78
100,320,000 South Africa Government Bond- Series R217 ZAR 6 500 28/02/2041 3,792,077 0.51
102,367,894 13.81
17,922,000,000 Asian Development Bank CoP 11 200 31/01/2025 4,062,399 0.55
16,757,000,000 Asian Development Bank CoP 12 750 03/03/2025 3,819,930 0.51
366,800,000 European Bank for Reconstruction & Development INR 6 300 26/10/2027 4,277,469 0.58

124,580,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-European Bank for 1DR
Reconstruction & Development 5 600 30/01/2025 7,849,366 1.06

106,890,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond- Inter-American 1DR
Development Bank 5 100 17/11/2026 6,576,248 0.89

31,000,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond- International Bank for IDR
Reconstruction & Development 4 600 09/02/2026 1,915,015 0.26

75,230,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond- International Bank for IDR
Reconstruction & Development 5 000 01/12/2026 4,610,229 0.62

362,000,000 International Bank for Reconstruction & INR
Development 6 850 24/04/2028 4,284,642 0.58
37,395,298 5.05
138,880,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 2 875 17/12/2028 4,176,827 0.56
219,210,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3 650 20/06/2031 6,958,348 0.94
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177,710,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 2 000 17/12/2031 5,127,022 0.69
216,240,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3 775 25/06/2032 6,980,080 0.94
36,730,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3 350 17/06/2033 1,160,132 0.16
33,270,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 1 585 17/12/2035 897,579 0.12
28,180,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3 390 17/06/2037 903,551 0.12
178,530,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3 300 17/06/2038 5,667,049 0.77
228,230,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3 450 17/06/2043 7,366,444 1.00
19,670,000 Thailand Government Bond THB 3 600 17/06/2067 618,589 0.08
39,855,621 5.38
241,970,000 Turkey Government Bond TRY 36 000 12/08/2026 6,842,680 0.92
364,120,000 Turkey Government Bond- Series 5Y TRY 31 080 08/11/2028 10,527,886 1.42
17,370,566 2.34
16,156,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond- JPMorgan Chase Bank NA IDR 10 500 19/08/2030 1,193,984 0.16
35,876,753 Uruguay Government International Bond uyu 3 875 02/07/2040 873,966 0.12
390,000 National Bank of Uzbekistan usb 4 850 21/10/2025 384,959 0.05
20,000 Petroleos de Venezuela SA usb 6 000 15/11/2026 1,920 0.00
725,316,195 674,545,768 91.03
3.73

27,634,622 Goldman Sachs US$ Treasury Liquid Reserves Fund
(X Distribution Class)(b) 27,634,622 3.73
27,634,622 27,634,622 3.73
752,950,817 702,180,390 94.76

0.07

7,763,000,000 Indonesia Treasury Bond-JPMorgan Chase Bank NA
(a) IDR 8.250  19/05/2036 536,634 0.07
609,792 536,634 0.07
609,792 536,634 0.07
753,560,609 702,717,024 94.83

0.01
UsD

11 US Treasury Long Bond Futures 20/03/2025 1,314,156 15,868 0.00
1 US Treasury Notes 10YR Futures 20/03/2025 111,203 560 0.00
7 US Treasury Notes 2YR Futures 31/03/2025 1,442,657 3,830 0.00
51 US Treasury Notes 5YR Futures 31/03/2025 5,488,078 17,445 0.00
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usb
35 US Treasury Ultra Long Notes 10YR Futures
20/03/2025 4,016,797 56,176 0.01
12,372,891 93,879 0.01
93,879 0.01
usb
(3) US Treasury Ultra Long Bond Futures 20/03/2025 (381,469) (6,953) (0.00)
(6,953) (0.00)
(0.39 )
corP 5,560,045,333 usD 1,258,896 02/12/2024 850 0.00
usb 1,263,912 CopP 5,560,045,333 02/12/2024 4,165 0.00
usb 43,227,819 EUR 40,016,783 02/12/2024 1,002,124 0.14
usb 17,157,620 BRL 99,400,607 03/12/2024 718,258 0.09
usb 1,604,180 TWD 51,012,937 05/12/2024 33,564 0.01
AUD 24,077,726 usb 15,660,080 06/12/2024 28,171 0.00
CHF 6,815,636 EUR 7,315,065 06/12/2024 13,255 0.00
CNH 12,132,701 usD 1,670,984 06/12/2024 2,439 0.00
CzZK 32,183,045 EUR 1,272,629 06/12/2024 1,766 0.00
EUR 33,024,702 usD 34,767,021 06/12/2024 84,679 0.01
GBP 8,032,995 EUR 9,650,356 06/12/2024 8,787 0.00
MXN 48,904,735 usD 2,365,890 06/12/2024 35,782 0.00
NZD 43,273,168 AUD 39,264,162 06/12/2024 48,608 0.00
NZD 4,191,869 usD 2,451,038 06/12/2024 31,917 0.00
SEK 102,460,781 EUR 8,893,725 06/12/2024 10,281 0.00
usb 12,185,271 HUF 4,649,830,072 06/12/2024 313,954 0.05
COoP 2,844,861,529 usD 641,457 09/12/2024 2,564 0.00
PLN 11,871,891 EUR 2,740,194 09/12/2024 24,309 0.00
usb 2,743,541 KRW 3,825,996,740 09/12/2024 3,935 0.00
usb 1,569,545 TWD 50,948,071 09/12/2024 595 0.00
usb 18,201,571 TWD 585,188,473 10/12/2024 179,691 0.02
usb 5,284,386 CAD 7,377,531 11/12/2024 20,180 0.00
usb 18,380,002 IDR 288,744,489,585 11/12/2024 173,660 0.04
usb 7,400,082 INR 624,310,134 11/12/2024 24,398 0.00
usb 11,608,207 MYR 48,525,453 11/12/2024 698,912 0.10
usb 1,281,593 CoP 5,587,104,945 12/12/2024 17,313 0.00
usb 1,441,792 KRW 1,995,872,942 12/12/2024 12,780 0.00
usb 3,205,806 TWD 102,745,981 12/12/2024 41,121 0.00
EUR 9,087,128 usD 9,565,111 13/12/2024 27,536 0.00
cop 8,553,361,063 usD 1,904,153 16/12/2024 30,261 0.00
KRW 6,691,186,634 usD 4,765,348 16/12/2024 26,256 0.00
CAD 4,921,623 EUR 3,290,000 18/12/2024 39,022 0.01
CHF 6,861,029 EUR 7,327,000 18/12/2024 59,192 0.01
CzZK 656,912,344 EUR 25,878,414 18/12/2024 135,898 0.02
EUR 1,640,000 HUF 655,458,800 18/12/2024 58,918 0.01
ILS 5,558,984 usD 1,493,160 18/12/2024 34,484 0.00
NOK 20,729,744 EUR 1,772,446 18/12/2024 2,262 0.00
PLN 119,085,851 EUR 27,591,735 18/12/2024 105,562 0.01
TRY 1,124,355,173 usD 31,174,515 18/12/2024 750,406 0.10
usb 6,577,704 AUD 9,820,801 18/12/2024 178,105 0.03
usb 310,969 BRL 1,713,906 18/12/2024 28,047 0.00
usb 40,875,444 CAD 55,906,805 18/12/2024 971,617 0.15
usb 10,283,667 CHF 8,745,586 18/12/2024 346,856 0.04
usb 20,740,860 CLP 19,375,485,548 18/12/2024 952,524 0.13
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usb 63,923,760 CNH 450,585,272 18/12/2024 1,735,368 0.23
usb 7,436,758 cop 31,897,293,385 18/12/2024 224,940 0.03
usb 29,544,778 CzZK 670,415,333 18/12/2024 1,520,153 0.21
usb 36,335,336 EUR 32,785,912 18/12/2024 1,717,632 0.23
usb 22,399,021 GBP 17,181,420 18/12/2024 597,821 0.09
usb 23,076,886 HUF 8,306,273,695 18/12/2024 1,879,529 0.27
usb 22,586,888 INR 1,903,091,486 18/12/2024 111,643 0.00
usb 12,176,599 JPY 1,784,208,100 18/12/2024 255,466 0.04
usb 10,858,961 KRW 14,725,988,585 18/12/2024 312,676 0.03
usb 36,091,323 MXN 716,771,885 18/12/2024 968,501 0.14
usb 22,413,266 MYR 96,713,245 18/12/2024 673,439 0.09
usb 11,417,336 NOK 121,120,140 18/12/2024 469,432 0.06
usb 17,047,924 NZD 27,621,892 18/12/2024 683,964 0.10
usb 19,089,537 PLN 74,111,253 18/12/2024 893,166 0.14
usb 24,651,948 RON 110,706,912 18/12/2024 1,194,542 0.16
usb 15,199,156 RSD 1,611,108,614 18/12/2024 665,454 0.10
usb 6,960,243 SEK 71,604,242 18/12/2024 389,069 0.06
usb 14,554,866 SGD 19,011,974 18/12/2024 364,291 0.04
usb 29,157,023 THB 966,449,660 18/12/2024 944,959 0.12
usb 4,337,372 TWD 137,829,267 18/12/2024 90,286 0.01
usb 69,759,227 ZAR 1,239,675,477 18/12/2024 1,139,674 0.16
TWD 51,242,779 usD 1,575,974 19/12/2024 3,139 0.00
usb 630,186 KRW 877,722,782 19/12/2024 1,562 0.00
usb 1,575,974 TWD 51,124,581 19/12/2024 504 0.00
TWD 53,660,222 usD 1,651,145 20/12/2024 2,581 0.00
usb 381,091 CNH 2,757,514 20/12/2024 474 0.00
usb 78,981 TWD 2,557,796 20/12/2024 154 0.00
usb 1,127,342 INR 94,880,485 23/12/2024 7,106 0.00
usb 1,577,207 TWD 51,054,185 23/12/2024 3,462 0.00
usb 2,742,034 TWD 88,785,108 27/12/2024 4,461 0.00
TWD 58,576,847 usD 1,803,197 31/12/2024 3,455 0.00
usb 1,254,203 KRW 1,748,986,028 31/12/2024 935 0.00
usb 1,803,197 TWD 58,431,815 31/12/2024 1,018 0.00
TWD 40,777,078 usD 1,255,259 02/01/2025 2,583 0.00
usb 1,536,602 BRL 8,959,897 03/01/2025 60,142 0.01
usb 1,845,040 BRL 10,793,486 06/01/2025 67,105 0.01
usb 16,248,904 KRW 22,604,776,185 10/01/2025 44,408 0.00
usb 7,416,783 CNH 52,510,821 13/01/2025 160,925 0.02
MXN 100,545,403 usD 4,823,015 21/01/2025 76,765 0.01
usb 5,793,634 EUR 5,469,686 21/01/2025 9,640 0.00
usb 36,531,301 cop 158,253,595,532 23/01/2025 917,537 0.12
usb 15,479,522 EUR 14,572,832 23/01/2025 67,955 0.01
usb 4,082,295 EUR 3,748,664 03/02/2025 115,996 0.02
PLN 21,412,273 EUR 4,903,579 05/02/2025 56,520 0.01
CzZK 55,699,549 EUR 2,197,221 06/02/2025 6,147 0.00
usb 11,015,023 EUR 10,320,457 12/02/2025 90,511 0.01
ZAR 34,785,130 usD 1,908,126 14/02/2025 7,263 0.00
cop 14,425,007,460 usD 3,170,331 18/02/2025 65,749 0.01
TWD 228,540,470 usD 7,073,366 20/02/2025 20,796 0.00
usb 2,362,520 AUD 3,558,012 26/02/2025 43,292 0.01
CNH 13,275,289 usD 1,836,648 28/02/2025 1,336 0.00
EUR 8,266,499 usD 8,729,424 28/02/2025 27,879 0.00
MXN 99,782,888 usD 4,759,499 28/02/2025 74,225 0.01
usb 1,070,831 AUD 1,605,925 03/03/2025 24,028 0.00
usb 6,719,879 SGD 8,800,673 12/03/2025 126,253 0.02
NZD 5,281,777 AUD 4,802,000 18/03/2025 2,356 0.00
usb 1,512,180 AUD 2,254,998 19/03/2025 42,277 0.00
usb 597,215 CAD 821,948 19/03/2025 8,550 0.00
usb 5,235,605 CHF 4,375,689 19/03/2025 212,760 0.03
usb 4,773,548 CNH 33,009,451 19/03/2025 198,854 0.03
usb 1,072,376 GBP 825,937 19/03/2025 24,662 0.00
usb 3,846,002 INR 325,461,524 19/03/2025 21,513 0.00
usb 1,244,306 JPY 181,842,743 19/03/2025 15,831 0.00
usb 977,860 MXN 19,724,437 19/03/2025 25,168 0.00
usb 1,377,040 NOK 14,786,923 19/03/2025 40,278 0.00
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USD 1,636,803 NZD 2,597,490 19/03/2025 96,263 0.01
USD 2,483,597 PLN 9,571,522 19/03/2025 142,788 0.02
USD 810,000 SEK 8,254,062 19/03/2025 48,275 0.01
27,092,490 3.65
EUR 40,070,293 USD 42,979,990 02/12/2024 (697,833) (0.09)
BRL 99,506,693 usD 17,342,587 03/12/2024 (885,679) (0.10)
WD 50,955,762 usD 1,569,545 05/12/2024 (690) (0.00)
AUD 21,291,588 NZD 23,462,561 06/12/2024 (24,599) (0.00)
coP 38,140,269,849 usD 8,844,895 06/12/2024 (207,041) (0.03)
EUR 1,181,000 CZK 29,853,909 06/12/2024 (1,138) (0.00)
EUR 9,584,799 GBP 7,991,014 06/12/2024 (24,701) (0.00)
EUR 2,576,565 PLN 11,116,428 06/12/2024 (12,021) (0.00)
EUR 1,181,000 SEK 13,638,070 06/12/2024 (4,325) (0.00)
HUF 4,601,845,820 usD 11,982,750 06/12/2024 (233,939) (0.03)
USD 3,136,520 CAD 4,421,995 06/12/2024 (18,239) (0.00)
USD 5,479,585 CNH 39,744,294 06/12/2024 (2,214) (0.00)
USD 9,619,936 coP 42,704,401,161 06/12/2024 (51,584) (0.00)
USD 26,636,882 EUR 25,365,509 06/12/2024 (131,903) (0.02)
USD 1,246,748 MXN 25,567,987 06/12/2024 (8,875) (0.00)
USD 12,507,812 NZD 21,319,557 06/12/2024 (120,323) (0.01)
USD 4,303,597 SGD 5,791,626 06/12/2024 (16,984) (0.00)
EUR 3,202,277 PLN 13,955,523 09/12/2024 (48,468) (0.01)
KRW 11,005,133,478 usD 7,882,120 09/12/2024 (1,891) (0.00)
WD 97,696,286 UsD 3,035,817 09/12/2024 (27,252) (0.00)
USD 3,015,928 ZAR 54,648,611 09/12/2024 (11,565) (0.00)
ZAR 54,383,669 usD 3,032,564 09/12/2024 (19,749) (0.00)
WD 48,859,422 usD 1,553,806 10/12/2024 (49,096) (0.01)
INR 1,242,499,530 usD 14,749,473 11/12/2024 (70,418) (0.01)
MYR 389,455,111 UsD 91,593,575 11/12/2024 (4,037,862) (0.54)
PEN 28,402,429 usD 7,630,549 11/12/2024 (44,907) (0.01)
USD 13,833,392 PEN 52,491,283 11/12/2024 (185,834) (0.02)
KRW 2,249,252,901 usD 1,612,137 12/12/2024 (1,708) (0.00)
WD 97,825,710 usD 3,045,708 12/12/2024 (32,572) (0.00)
WD 103,926,083 UsD 3,210,221 13/12/2024 (8,961) (0.00)
USD 1,585,139 KRW 2,218,560,111 16/12/2024 (3,587) (0.00)
PEN 11,777,619 UsD 3,164,466 17/12/2024 (19,110) (0.00)
AUD 18,180,460 usD 12,257,428 18/12/2024 (410,364) (0.06)
BRL 4,867,881 usD 869,911 18/12/2024 (66,347) (0.01)
CAD 40,183,400 usD 29,587,583 18/12/2024 (906,431) (0.13)
CHF 6,943,413 usD 8,163,013 18/12/2024 (273,848) (0.05)
CLP 10,526,061,184 UsD 11,182,847 18/12/2024 (432,498) (0.06)
CNH 681,559,686 usD 97,052,557 18/12/2024 (2,985,792) (0.41)
CNY 27,087,458 usD 3,864,724 18/12/2024 (92,798) (0.02)
coP 49,789,900,536 usD 11,518,669 18/12/2024 (261,422) (0.04)
CzK 408,014,766 usD 17,962,631 18/12/2024 (906,845) (0.13)
EUR 3,290,000 CHF 3,073,702 18/12/2024 (18,551) (0.00)
EUR 24,491,516 CzK 619,638,311 18/12/2024 (42,159) (0.00)
EUR 24,402,415 PLN 106,368,905 18/12/2024 (350,711) (0.05)
EUR 583,000 SEK 6,760,074 18/12/2024 (4,804) (0.00)
EUR 35,944,691 usD 39,813,184 18/12/2024 (1,860,214) (0.25)
GBP 12,265,806 usD 16,067,635 18/12/2024 (503,770) (0.06)
HUF 557,614,602 EUR 1,358,561 18/12/2024 (11,450) (0.00)
HUF 5,497,573,908 UsD 15,294,678 18/12/2024 (1,265,037) (0.17)
INR 1,466,793,471 usD 17,437,903 18/12/2024 (115,276) (0.02)
JPY 2,647,876,817 usD 18,003,329 18/12/2024 (311,619) (0.05)
KRW 10,706,497,317 usD 7,733,277 18/12/2024 (65,624) (0.01)
MXN 649,690,684 usD 32,429,143 18/12/2024 (593,394) (0.08)
MYR 90,892,358 usD 21,744,583 18/12/2024 (1,313,212) (0.18)
NOK 165,727,798 usD 15,315,582 18/12/2024 (335,645) (0.04)
NZD 19,692,941 UsD 12,150,693 18/12/2024 (484,057) (0.07)
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PLN 63,375,080 UsD 16,444,277 18/12/2024 (883,934) (0.13)
RON 84,730,223 usD 18,837,777 18/12/2024 (884,507) (0.12)
RSD 326,287,379 usD 3,086,524 18/12/2024 (143,108) (0.02)
SEK 68,058,560 usD 6,551,078 18/12/2024 (305,293) (0.04)
SGD 25,895,998 usD 19,945,702 18/12/2024 (616,878) (0.09)
THB 1,535,601,103 usD 46,440,479 18/12/2024 (1,614,060) 0.22)
WD 150,463,510 usD 4,680,812 18/12/2024 (44,413) (0.00)
USD 587,646 ILS 2,202,888 18/12/2024 (17,721) (0.00)
USD 31,086,307 TRY 1,117,926,581 18/12/2024 (656,085) (0.08)
ZAR 472,888,331 usD 26,906,571 18/12/2024 (730,862) (0.10)
KRW 879,361,265 usD 630,186 19/12/2024 (388) (0.00)
INR 87,360,967 usD 1,033,454 20/12/2024 (1,840) (0.00)
USD 628,710 coP 2,790,213,737 20/12/2024 (1,967) (0.00)
INR 141,325,578 usD 1,676,559 23/12/2024 (7,955) (0.00)
WD 102,323,362 usD 3,154,526 23/12/2024 (409) (0.00)
BRL 51,793,295 usD 8,882,670 03/01/2025 (347,893) (0.05)
BRL 14,579,822 usD 2,486,794 06/01/2025 (85,162) (0.01)
WD 35,968,824 usD 1,136,456 07/01/2025 (26,236) (0.00)
USD 15,613,245 WD 506,185,846 07/01/2025 (10,770) (0.00)
KRW 868,239,079 usD 648,012 10/01/2025 (25,605) (0.00)
CNH 44,271,901 usD 6,148,875 13/01/2025 (31,458) (0.01)
MXN 47,511,322 usD 2,337,580 13/01/2025 (19,314) (0.00)
USD 3,377,401 MXN 70,317,482 13/01/2025 (53,670) (0.01)
CNH 44,025,772 usD 6,114,691 21/01/2025 (29,059) (0.00)
EUR 2,402,089 usD 2,627,886 21/01/2025 (87,764) (0.01)
USD 4,680,229 MXN 97,521,927 21/01/2025 (72,211) (0.01)
CNH 43,822,968 usD 6,094,565 23/01/2025 (36,412) (0.01)
EUR 7,269,674 usD 7,926,908 23/01/2025 (238,829) (0.03)
NZD 5,883,331 usD 3,552,944 23/01/2025 (66,103) (0.01)
USD 2,502,960 NZD 4,293,242 23/01/2025 (41,491) (0.01)
CNH 18,756,385 usD 2,606,139 27/01/2025 (12,754) (0.00)
USD 3,032,599 CNH 21,952,981 27/01/2025 (2,769) (0.00)
CNH 34,473,372 usD 4,815,860 10/02/2025 (46,439) (0.01)
NZD 7,461,825 usD 4,442,024 10/02/2025 (18,859) (0.00)
USD 3,095,910 CNH 22,415,937 10/02/2025 (5,355) (0.00)
EUR 6,485,314 usD 7,022,947 12/02/2025 (158,047) (0.02)
HUF 1,192,238,586 usD 3,089,902 13/02/2025 (55,025) (0.01)
KRW 8,930,054,899 usD 6,420,805 13/02/2025 (9,199) (0.00)
NZD 3,974,919 usD 2,361,102 14/02/2025 (4,766) (0.00)
CZK 66,348,425 EUR 2,641,259 24/02/2025 (19,249) (0.00)
EUR 372,831 CZK 9,442,312 24/02/2025 (499) (0.00)
AUD 4,740,020 usD 3,204,253 26/02/2025 (114,554) (0.02)
BRL 13,215,355 usD 2,240,650 26/02/2025 (80,833) (0.01)
AUD 4,104,031 usD 2,805,105 03/03/2025 (129,942) (0.02)
KRW 822,266,976 usD 618,921 12/03/2025 (27,596) (0.00)
SGD 8,349,053 usD 6,454,621 12/03/2025 (199,357) (0.03)
WD 31,988,469 usD 1,016,798 12/03/2025 (21,673) (0.00)
USD 15,392,078 KRW 21,524,520,692 12/03/2025 (87,056) (0.02)
AUD 930,915 usD 640,379 19/03/2025 (33,569) (0.01)
CAD 5,396,017 usD 3,926,138 19/03/2025 (61,609) (0.00)
CHF 2,266,038 usD 2,671,118 19/03/2025 (69,937) (0.00)
CLP 761,707,628 usD 842,294 19/03/2025 (65,427) (0.01)
CNH 7,923,711 usD 1,113,003 19/03/2025 (14,877) (0.00)
coP 888,704,740 usD 206,986 19/03/2025 (8,312) (0.00)
CzK 94,694,435 usD 4,168,931 19/03/2025 (201,257) (0.03)
EUR 4,458,731 usD 5,010,231 19/03/2025 (281,727) (0.04)
GBP 432,899 usD 550,233 19/03/2025 (1,094) (0.00)
HUF 451,330,595 usD 1,263,843 19/03/2025 (116,879) (0.02)
KRW 1,652,208,707 usD 1,247,765 19/03/2025 (59,104) (0.01)
NOK 1,718,867 usD 163,342 19/03/2025 (7,954) (0.00)
NZD 516,664 usD 316,266 19/03/2025 (9,839) (0.00)
SEK 6,189,712 usD 615,360 19/03/2025 (44,144) (0.01)
SGD 1,787,850 usD 1,403,898 19/03/2025 (63,980) (0.01)
WD 43,412,543 usD 1,401,372 19/03/2025 (49,850) (0.01)
USD 914,160 ILS 3,383,394 19/03/2025 (18,057) (0.00)
EGP 243,416,888 usD 4,672,109 02/04/2025 (59,011) (0.01)
EGP 383,561,472 usD 7,358,572 03/04/2025 (93,052) (0.01)

(29,951,984) (4.04)
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8,630,703 EUR 8,017,814 16/01/2025 153,984 0.02
153,984 0.02
144,384,155 USD 156,825,271 16/01/2025 (4,177,189) (0.56)
(4,177,189) (0.56)

(0.12%)

( )

AUD
9,550,000 Put AUD / Call USD Expires 24/02/2025 Strike 0.64 8,218 84,549 0.01
10,849,000 Put AUD / Call USD Expires 24/02/2025 Strike 0.67 100,111 274,165 0.04
16,332,000 Put AUD / Call USD Expires 27/02/2025 Strike 0.65 7,153 158,531 0.02
115,482 517,245 0.07

EUR
6,521,000 Call EUR / Put CzZK Expires 04/02/2025 Strike 25.54 (42,725) 18,152 0.00
6,585,000 Call EUR / Put CzZK Expires 20/02/2025 Strike 25.20 (13,203) 58,270 0.01
12,096,000 Call EUR / Put CZK Expires 20/02/2025 Strike 25.60 (36,635) 37,155 0.00
11,903,000 Call EUR / Put PLN Expires 05/12/2024 Strike 4.39 (65,708) 1,495 0.00
12,381,000 Call EUR / Put PLN Expires 03/02/2025 Strike 4.37 (97,214) 72,011 0.01
17,676,750 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 04/12/2024 Strike 1.04 (83,825) 2,257 0.00
17,600,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 04/12/2024 Strike 1.05 (32,714) 44,516 0.01
17,666,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 04/12/2024 Strike 1.05 (64,025) 12,396 0.00
17,766,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 04/12/2024 Strike 1.05 (45,590) 25,645 0.00
23,614,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 11/12/2024 Strike 1.05 (36,604) 82,900 0.01
5,856,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 17/01/2025 Strike 1.05 (15,073) 42,668 0.01
5,933,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 17/01/2025 Strike 1.09 125,355 194,401 0.03
17,805,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 21/01/2025 Strike 1.07 183,178 317,326 0.04
6,515,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 21/01/2025 Strike 1.09 126,192 216,723 0.03
17,525,000 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 10/02/2025 Strike 1.07 220,202 414,451 0.06
17,629,975 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 26/02/2025 Strike 1.04 (19,828) 157,792 0.02
5,862,780 Put EUR / Call USD Expires 26/02/2025 Strike 1.05 (7,675) 65,298 0.01
94,108 1,763,456 0.24

GBP
9,807,000 Put GBP / Call USD Expires 20/01/2025 Strike 1.26 (11,999) 98,097 0.02

NZD
21,118,000 Put NZD / Call USD Expires 21/01/2025 Strike 0.58 (75,486) 71,247 0.01
21,230,000 Put NZD / Call USD Expires 21/01/2025 Strike 0.59 12,510 143,589 0.02
21,131,000 Put NZD / Call USD Expires 06/02/2025 Strike 0.59 (12,331) 162,093 0.02
10,517,000 Put NzD / Call USD Expires 12/02/2025 Strike 0.59 (9,301) 83,116 0.01
(84,608) 460,045 0.06

usb
2,890,000 Call 12 month SOFR Swaption Expires 24/02/2025 Strike 3.50 5,003 15,233 0.00
9,488,000 Call USD / Put BRL Expires 02/01/2025 Strike 6.08 56,435 186,705 0.03
14,110,000 Call USD / Put CNH Expires 09/01/2025 Strike 7.39 (65,882) 13,066 0.00
14,280,000 Call USD / Put CNH Expires 17/01/2025 Strike 7.39 (57,605) 21,006 0.00
14,223,000 Call USD / Put CNH Expires 21/01/2025 Strike 7.38 (58,784) 24,307 0.00
12,675,000 Call USD / Put CNH Expires 06/02/2025 Strike 7.21 21,002 137,232 0.02
12,387,000 Call USD / Put CNH Expires 06/02/2025 Strike 7.31 (14,456) 61,848 0.01
6,188,000 Call USD / Put CNH Expires 26/02/2025 Strike 7.33 (4,431) 37,524 0.00
12,719,000 Call USD / Put COP Expires 04/12/2024 Strike 4,490.00 (107,107) 20,961 0.00
9,318,000 Call USD / Put COP Expires 13/02/2025 Strike 4,625.00 (85,250) 117,929 0.02
10,793,000 Call USD / Put HUF Expires 04/12/2024 Strike 367.00 571,500 678,955 0.09
9,499,000 Call USD / Put HUF Expires 11/02/2025 Strike 392.00 56,263 213,015 0.03
26,195,000 Call USD / Put KRW Expires 08/01/2025 Strike 1,373.10 271,878 539,512 0.07
18,999,000 Call USD / Put KRW Expires 11/02/2025 Strike 1,411.00 (24,965) 204,049 0.03
28,973,000 Call USD / Put KRW Expires 10/03/2025 Strike 1,374.50 354,195 717,661 0.10
12,666,000 Call USD / Put KRW Expires 10/03/2025 Strike 1,420.00 (20,899) 139,795 0.02
12,533,000 Call USD / Put KRW Expires 10/03/2025 Strike 1,440.00 (43,339) 95,063 0.01
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usD
6,377,000 Call USD / Put MXN Expires 09/01/2025  Strike 20.54 (17,409) 111,751 0.02
13,952,000 Call USD / Put MXN Expires 16/01/2025  Strike 21.17 (131,902) 135,558 0.02
13,936,000 Call USD / Put MXN Expires 26/02/2025  Strike 21.34 (81,414) 225,875 0.03
14,487,000 Call USD / Put SGD Expires 10/03/2025  Strike 1.33 146,884 228,011 0.03
29,067,000 Call USD / Put TWD Expires 06/12/2024  Strike 32.00 185,244 423,884 0.06
26,195,000 Call USD / Put TWD Expires 06/12/2024  Strike 32.65 (164,216) 20,170 0.00
26,561,000 Call USD / Put TWD Expires 03/01/2025  Strike 32.30 7,968 239,686 0.03
25,067,000 Call USD / Put TWD Expires 03/01/2025  Strike 32.65 (54,822) 96,959 0.01
18,511,000 Call USD / Put TWD Expires 18/02/2025  Strike 32.63 (42,446) 131,261 0.02
28,973,000 Call USD / Put TWD Expires 10/03/2025  Strike 32.30 27,582 342,693 0.05
6,193,000 Call USD / Put USD Expires 24/02/2025  Strike 6.00 119,599 251,640 0.03
6,267,000 Call USD / Put ZAR Expires 12/02/2025  Strike 18.75 (39,413) 73,976 0.01
14,110,000 Put USD / Call CNH Expires 09/01/2025  Strike 7.02 (156,438) 7,944 0.00
14,487,000 Put USD / Call KRW Expires 10/03/2025  Strike 1,325.80 (10,155) 52,805 0.01
14,487,000 Put USD / Call SGD Expires 10/03/2025  Strike 1.26 (22,730) 8,562 0.00
14,534,000 Put USD / Call TWD Expires 06/12/2024  Strike 31.40 (81,434) 14 0.00
538,456 5,574,650 0.75
7,762,055 8,413,493 1.14

AUD
(8,597,000) Call AUD / Put NZD Expires 05/12/2024  Strike 1.10 27,581 (5,237) (0.00)
(8,605,000) Call AUD / Put NZD Expires 19/12/2024  Strike 1.10 18,036 (14,886) (0.00)
(8,612,000) Call AUD / Put NZD Expires 23/12/2024  Strike 1.10 722 (25,991) (0.00)
(8,607,000) Call AUD / Put NZD Expires 03/01/2025  Strike 1.10 7,631 (22,740) (0.00)
(8,597,000) Put AUD / Call NZD Expires 05/12/2024  Strike 1.10 8,911 (23,907) (0.00)
(8,605,000) Put AUD / Call NZD Expires 19/12/2024  Strike 1.10 (3.617)  (36,538) (0.01)
(8,612,000) Put AUD / Call NZD Expires 23/12/2024  Strike 1.10 1,855 (24,857) (0.00)
(8,607,000) Put AUD / Call NZD Expires 03/01/2025  Strike 1.10 9,192)  (39,564) (0.01)
(10,849,000) Put AUD / Call USD Expires 24/02/2025  Strike 0.67 (58,678)  (274,165) (0.04)
(6,751) __ (467,885) (0.06)

EUR
(5,308,000) Call EUR / Put CHF Expires 29/11/2024  Strike 0.94 27,160 ©) (0.00)
(5,232,000) Call EUR / Put CHF Expires 05/12/2024  Strike 0.94 32,582 (1,794) (0.00)
(5,302,000) Call EUR / Put CHF Expires 11/12/2024  Strike 0.94 27,689 (6,311) (0.00)
(5,300,000) Call EUR / Put CHF Expires 23/12/2024  Strike 0.93 5,099 (35,255) (0.00)
(6,585,000) Call EUR / Put CZK Expires 20/02/2025  Strike 25.20 25,609 (58,270) (0.01)
(5,308,000) Call EUR / Put GBP Expires 29/11/2024  Strike 0.83 24,167 ©) (0.00)
(5,232,000) Call EUR / Put GBP Expires 05/12/2024  Strike 0.83 28,068 (5,328) (0.00)
(5,297,000) Call EUR / Put GBP Expires 12/12/2024  Strike 0.83 (1,204)  (32,586) (0.00)
(11,903,000) Call EUR / Put PLN Expires 05/12/2024  Strike 4.39 43,181 (1,495) (0.00)
(5,308,000) Call EUR / Put SEK Expires 29/11/2024  Strike 11.55 27,844 ©) (0.00)
(5,232,000) Call EUR / Put SEK Expires 05/12/2024  Strike 11.66 34,467 (751) (0.00)
(5,302,000) Call EUR / Put SEK Expires 11/12/2024  Strike 11.58 25,211 (9,494) (0.00)
(5,300,000) Call EUR / Put SEK Expires 20/12/2024  Strike 11.59 19,551 (16,604) (0.00)
(5,308,000) Put EUR / Call CHF Expires 29/11/2024  Strike 0.94 (24,885)  (52,045) (0.01)
(5,232,000) Put EUR / Call CHF Expires 05/12/2024  Strike 0.94 (26,860)  (61,237) (0.01)
(5,302,000) Put EUR / Call CHF Expires 11/12/2024  Strike 0.94 (22,131)  (56,131) (0.01)
(5,300,000) Put EUR / Call CHF Expires 23/12/2024  Strike 0.93 748 (39,607) (0.00)
(5,308,000) Put EUR / Call GBP Expires 29/11/2024  Strike 0.83 21,591 (2,576) (0.00)
(5,232,000) Put EUR / Call GBP Expires 05/12/2024  Strike 0.83 10,280 (23,116) (0.00)
(5,297,000) Put EUR / Call GBP Expires 12/12/2024  Strike 0.83 19,270 (12,112) (0.00)
(5,308,000) Put EUR / Call SEK Expires 29/11/2024  Strike 11.55 7,306 (20,539) (0.00)
(5,232,000) Put EUR / Call SEK Expires 05/12/2024  Strike 11.66 (36,597)  (71,815) (0.01)
(5,302,000) Put EUR / Call SEK Expires 11/12/2024  Strike 11.58 (10,690)  (45,395) (0.01)
(5,300,000) Put EUR / Call SEK Expires 20/12/2024  Strike 11.59 (21,879)  (58,034) (0.01)
(17,676,750) Put EUR / Call USD Expires 04/12/2024  Strike 1.04 16,948 (2,257) (0.00)
(17,600,000) Put EUR / Call USD Expires 04/12/2024  Strike 1.05 90,585 (44,516) (0.01)
(17,666,000) Put EUR / Call USD Expires 04/12/2024  Strike 1.05 136,813 (12,396) (0.00)
(17,766,000) Put EUR / Call USD Expires 04/12/2024  Strike 1.05 36,050 (25,645) (0.00)
(5,856,000) Put EUR / Call USD Expires 17/01/2025  Strike 1.05 8,457 (42,668) (0.01)
(5,933,000) Put EUR / Call USD Expires 17/01/2025  Strike 1.09 (61,475)  (194,401) (0.03)
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EUR
(17,805,000) Put EUR / Call USD Expires 21/01/2025  Strike 1.07 43,092 (317,326) (0.04)
(6,515,000) Put EUR / Call USD Expires 21/01/2025  Strike 1.09 (124,174)  (216,723) (0.03)
(8,786,000) Put EUR / Call USD Expires 30/01/2025  Strike 1.09 (150,497)  (270,592) (0.04)
(17,525,000) Put EUR / Call USD Expires 10/02/2025  Strike 1.07 (81,941)  (414,451) (0.06)
149,435 (2,151,470) (0.29)

GBP
(9,807,000) Put GBP / Call USD Expires 20/01/2025  Strike 1.23 7,528 (39,273) (0.01)

NZD
(21,230,000) Put NZD / Call USD Expires 21/01/2025  Strike 0.59 118,009  (143,588) (0.02)

USD
(9,488,000) Call USD / Put BRL Expires 02/01/2025  Strike 6.08 (128,164)  (186,705) (0.03)
(11,179,000) Call USD / Put CAD Expires 10/12/2024  Strike 1.40 (12,297)  (68,695) (0.01)
(5,574,000) Call USD / Put CAD Expires 24/12/2024  Strike 1.40 (3,272)  (40,367) (0.01)
(14,110,000) Call USD / Put CNH Expires 09/01/2025  Strike 7.39 37,307 (13,066) (0.00)
(12,675,000) Call USD / Put CNH Expires 06/02/2025  Strike 7.21 22,067  (137,232) (0.02)
(12,719,000) Call USD / Put COP Expires 04/12/2024  Strike 4,490.00 153,238 (20,961) (0.00)
(10,793,000) Call USD / Put HUF Expires 04/12/2024  Strike 367.00 (459,911)  (678,955) (0.09)
(13,097,000) Call USD / Put KRW Expires 08/01/2025  Strike 1,334.70 (298,481)  (575,207) (0.08)
(6,548,750) Call USD / Put KRW Expires 08/01/2025  Strike 1,373.10 19,149  (134,878) (0.02)
(19,646,250) Call USD / Put KRW Expires 08/01/2025  Strike 1,373.10 27,131 (404,634) (0.05)
(14,487,000) Call USD / Put KRW Expires 10/03/2025  Strike 1,325.80 (356,598)  (723,119) (0.10)
(14,486,500) Call USD / Put KRW Expires 10/03/2025  Strike 1,374.50 28,118  (358,831) (0.05)
(14,486,500) Call USD / Put KRW Expires 10/03/2025  Strike 1,374.50 90,280  (358,831) (0.05)
(12,666,000) Call USD / Put KRW Expires 10/03/2025  Strike 1,420.00 56,528  (139,795) (0.02)
(6,377,000) Call USD / Put XN Expires 09/01/2025  Strike 20.54 80,261  (111,750) (0.02)
(13,952,000) Call USD / Put XN Expires 16/01/2025  Strike 21.17 72,606  (135,558) (0.02)
(5,739,000) Call USD / Put SGD Expires 10/12/2024  Strike 1.32 (55,137)  (91,795) (0.01)
(14,487,000) Call USD / Put SGD Expires 10/03/2025  Strike 1.33 (121,387)  (228,011) (0.03)
(14,534,000) Call USD / Put TWD Expires 06/12/2024  Strike 31.40 (240,087)  (477,645) (0.06)
(29,067,000) Call USD / Put TWD Expires 06/12/2024  Strike 32.00 9,127  (423,884) (0.06)
(13,097,500) Call USD / Put TWD Expires 06/12/2024  Strike 32.65 59,083 (10,085) (0.00)
(13,097,500) Call USD / Put TWD Expires 06/12/2024  Strike 32.65 39,345 (10,085) (0.00)
(13,280,000) Call USD / Put TWD Expires 03/01/2025  Strike 31.62 (111,512)  (339,809) (0.05)
(26,561,000) Call USD / Put TWD Expires 03/01/2025  Strike 32.30 47,172 (239,686) (0.03)
(25,067,000) Call USD / Put TWD Expires 03/01/2025  Strike 32.65 63,094 (96,959) (0.01)
(14,487,000) Call USD / Put TWD Expires 10/03/2025  Strike 31.40 (106,059)  (421,673) (0.06)
(5,574,000) Put USD / Call CAD Expires 24/12/2024  Strike 1.40 8,918 (28,177) (0.00)
(14,110,000) Put USD / Call CNH Expires 09/01/2025  Strike 7.02 66,121 (7,944) (0.00)
(14,280,000) Put USD / Call CNH Expires 17/01/2025  Strike 7.02 62,504 (13,123) (0.00)
(14,223,000) Put USD / Call CNH Expires 21/01/2025  Strike 7.01 64,388 (13,142) (0.00)
(5,739,000) Put USD / Call SGD Expires 10/12/2024  Strike 1.32 35,206 1,452) (0.00)
(14,487,000) Put USD / Call SGD Expires 10/03/2025  Strike 1.26 66,843 (8,562) (0.00)
(784,419) (6,500,616) (0.88)
(8,786,635) (9,302,832) (1.26)
(1,024,580) (889,339) (0.12)

0.33

163,051,099 Fixed 9.750% Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) BRL  02/01/2026 335,495 0.05
97,530,000 Fixed 10.25% Floating (BRL 1 month BRCDI) BRL  02/01/2029 811,105 0.11
13,020,180,000 Fixed 4.750% Floating (CLP 1 month CLICP) CLP  18/12/2029 108,068 0.02
8,339,230,000 Fixed 5.000% Floating (CLP 1 month CLICP) CLP  18/12/2034 311,907 0.04
744,630,000 Floating (CNY 3 month CNRR) Fixed 1.750% CNY  18/12/2026 282,789 0.04
693,910,000 Floating (CNY 3 month CNRR) Fixed 1.750% CNY  18/12/2029 793,021 0.11
12,100,000 Floating (EUR 6 month EURIBOR)  Fixed 2.500% EUR  18/12/2034 258,412 0.04
1,708,220,000 Fixed 6.000% Floating (HUF 6 month BUBOR) HUF  18/12/2034 147,156 0.02
34,383,740,000 Floating (KRW 3 month KSDA) Fixed 2.750% KRW  18/12/2026 96,895 0.01
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2024 11 30
1,536,090,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 9.000% VXN 17/03/2027 84,491 0.01
122,180,000 Floating (MXN 1 month TIIE) Fixed 9.000% XN 07/03/2035 20,901 0.00
27.140,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 4.000% WR  15/03/2028 2,129 0.00
32,250,000 Floating (YR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 3.750% WYR  20/09/2028 57,403 0.01
15,470,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 3.680% WR  12/07/2032 20,991 0.00
26,080,000 Floating (WYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 3.750% WR  21/12/2032 106,084 0.01
17,420,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 3.750% WR  21/06/2033 39,812 0.01
16,100,000 Floating (WYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 4.000% WR  20/09/2033 75,258 0.01
5.640.000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 4.000% WYR  20/03/2034 23.707 0.00
22,720,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 4.000% WR  20/03/2034 102,657 0.01
32,350,000 Floating (YR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 4.000% WYR  19/06/2034 197,725 0.03
720,000 Floating (PLN 6 month WIBOR)  Fixed 4.500% PLN  18/12/2034 1,727 0.00
49,140,000 Fixed 3.250% Floating (USD 1 month SOFR) USD  18/12/2029 522,799 0.07
1,498.980.000 Fixed 7.250% Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) 7R 18/12/2026 311,845 0.04
4,712,377 0.64
1.712.377 0.64
39,873,890,000 Fixed 7.250% Floating (COP 1 month CPIER) COP  18/12/2026 (41,424) (0.01)
53.290,340.000 Floating (COP 1 month CPIBR)  Fixed 7.250% COP  18/12/2029 (132.151) (0.02)
22.150,160,000 Floating (COP 1 month CPIBR)  Fixed 7.750% COP  18/12/2034 (281,284) (0.04)
569,200,000 Floating (CZK 6 month PRIBOR)  Fixed 3.250% CZK  18/12/2029 (43,117) (0.01)
45.130,000 Floating (CZK 6 month PRIBOR)  Fixed 3.500% CZK  18/12/2034 (26.819) (0.00)
2,230,000 Fixed 2.750% Floating (EUR 6 month EURIBOR)  EUR  18/12/2039 (75,193) (0.01)
1,886,700,000 Fixed 5.500% Floating (HUF 6 month BUBOR) HUF  18/12/2026 (45.886) (0.01)
6,402,510,000 Floating (HUF 6 month BUBOR) Fixed 5.500% HUF 18/12/2029 (161,360) (0.02)
6,445.620,000 Fixed 6.000% Floating (INR 1 month MIBOR) INR - 18/12/2026 (119.217) (0.02)
26,240,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 3.250% WR  18/12/2024 (1,224) (0.00)
19,680,000 Floating (YR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 2.250% WR  17/06/2025 (32.802) (0.01)
54,770,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 2.000% WYR  16/06/2026 (247.781) (0.03)
79,810,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 2.000% WR  16/06/2026 (156,580) (0.02)
72,530,000 Floating (WYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 3.000% WYR  15/12/2031 (522.099) (0.07)
22,970,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 3.271% WR  21/12/2031 (98,555) (0.01)
33,020,000 Floating (MYR 3 month KLIBOR)  Fixed 3.500% WR  16/03/2032 (30,521) (0.00)
24.240.000 Fixed 4.750% Floating (PLN 6 month WIBOR) PLN  18/12/2026 (31.306) (0.00)
7.818.578 Floating (USD 1 month SOFR) Fixed 3.750% USD  18/12/2026 (54,190) (0.01)
1,670,000 Fixed 3.750% Floating (USD 1 month SOFR) USD  18/12/2029 (5.407) (0.00)
950,000 Fixed 3.750% Floating (USD 1 month SOFR) usb 18/12/2031 (5,771) (0.00)
7,516.596 Fixed 3.750% Floating (USD 1 month SOFR) USD  18/12/2034 (80.556) (0.01)
106,940,000 Fixed 8.750% Floating (ZAR 3 month JIBAR) ZAR  18/12/2034 (100.412) (0.01)
(2,293.655) (0.3D)
1,040,000 f;igt;gigzﬁ;:i;i%§°ver”me"t Fixed 1.000% USD  20/03/2025 (11,982) (0.00)
(11.982) (0.00)
(2.305.637) (0.31)
752,536,029 697,438,652 94.12
43,554,266 5.88
740,992,918 100.00
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2024 11 30

753,560,609 702,717,024 94.83
93,879 0.01
(6,953) (0.00)
27,092,490 3.65
(29,951,984) (4.04)
153,984 0.02
(4,177,189) (0.56)
7,762,055 8,413,493 1.14
(8,786,635) (9,302,832) (1.26)
4,712,377 0.64
(2,305,637) (0.31)
43,554,266 5.88
740,992,918 100.00

2024 11 30

(a) 144 1933 144

®
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2025
26,878,519.98 4,018,876
315,557.31 47,182
26,562,962.67 3,971,694

3,609,448

2.55 381
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148,922,433

1,084,554,532

297,478,796

616,932,015

26,684,935,690

20,238,323,324

808,488,985

426,720,674

14 [110,219,094,455

47 13,955,368,070

211,833,821

10,565,256,027

2,562,963,573

4,650,910,836
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23 103

PricewaterhouseCoopers, Ireland

2025 31
149.52
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
614,381 91,862,247 888,616 132,865,864
202 30,203 131 19,587

(613,645) (91,752,200)

(887,960) (132,767,779)

938 140,250 787 117,672
(134) (20,036) (110) (16,447)
804 120,214 677 101,225

207/292



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2024 12 31

2024 12 31 2023 12 31
76,242 11,399,704 58,497 8,746,471

117,418 17,556,339 208,274 31,141,128

193,660 28,956,043 266,771 39,887,600

10 (161,896) (24,206,690) (235,811) (35,258,461)
31,764 4,749,353 30,960 4,629,139

11 25,000 3,738,000 25,000 3,738,000
6,764 1,011,353 5,960 891,139

31,764 4,749,353 30,960 4,629,139

2025 18
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2024 12 31
2022 12 31 25,000 3,738,000 5,283 789,914 30,283 4,527,914
677 101,225 677 101,225
2023 12 31 25,000 3,738,000 5,960 891,139 30,960 4,629,139
804 120,214 804 120,214
2024 12 31 25,000 3,738,000 6,764 1,011,353 31,764 4,749,353
2024 2023 12 31
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
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2024 12 31
47 49
10282 200
www. goldmansachs.com/shareholders
101 101
2014
101 I
45(h) 46 52
13 91 99
15 110 113(a) 114 115
118 119(a) (©) 120 127 129
9@(C )
38
10(F) 16 40
30 31
24 17
24
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
202 131
202 131
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
1,402 1,171
1,402 1,171
31 2023 12
38,899 2023 12
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
469,460 744,534
20,822 34,436
104,593 82,101
9,395 18,015
5,517 4,636
3,858 4,238
613,645 887,960
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2024 12 31 2023 12 31
41,500 39,525
41,500 39,525
31
25 2023 22
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
183 152
14 ©)
® 197 143
(63) (33)
(63) (33)
134 110
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
938 787
117 98
2 3
14 )
1 18
134 110
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12.5
2021
750
15
2024 15
2023 15
2023 12 20 675/2023
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
130 73
130 73
2023 12 31 73 38
63 33
(©) 2
2024 12 31 130 73
2024 12 31 2023 12 31

94,200 153,722
22,363 54,115
725 364
130 73
117,418 208,274
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10
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
131,193 212,487
2,337 1,975
28,366 21,349
161,896 235,811
11
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
25,000,000 25,000 25,000,000 25,000
2 2
2018 12 19
25,000,000
12
2024 12 31 2023 12 31
2024 2023 12 31
13
2023 12 31

14
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2023 12 31 266.3 161.6
233.2
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Docusign Envelope |D: CTET TATF-2045-404F-A3ES-5D4 THE1 370OT

GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

for the vear ended 31 December 2024

Note Year ended Year ended

31 December 2024 31 December 2023

LSS ) LTSS DMk

Tumover 614,381 BER.616

Interest receivable and similar income 4 202 131

Admirustrative expenses 4] (613,645} (837.960)
OPFERATING PROFIT AND PROFIT BEFORE

TAXATION Q38 187

Tax on profit T (134} {1140

PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 814 677

The operating profits of the company are derived from conlinuing operations.

The company has no recogmzed pans and losses other than those included in the profit and Joss account for the year
shown above and therefore no separate statement of comprehensive income has been presented

The accompanying nodes are an integral part of these (inancial statements.

- 18-
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 December 2024

Nt 31 December 2024 31 December 2023
LTSS (HH) LSS (W}
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash at bank and i hand T6.242 s8.497
Debiors 9 174158 208.274
193660 266,771
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE
WITHIN ONE YEAR 10 {161 8963 (215.811)
NET CURRENT ASSETS AND NET ASSETS 3. 764 3k Sl
CAPITALAND RESERVES
Called wp share capital 11 25,000 25,000k
Profit and loss account 764 5.5900
TOTALSHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS 3. 764 30l

The Mnancial statements were approved by ihe Board of Directors om 18 March 20235 and signed on its behall by:

Dotagned by, Bagred by:
Basliars Hud, Vale Wiittakes
bR i = R
Barbara Healy John Whittaker
Director Direcior

The accompanying noes are an integral pan of these Mnancial statcments.

o [ [
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ECHUTTY

for the vear ended 31 December 2024

Called up share Profit amd loss  Total sharelvolders®

capital sccount funds

USstodn (BT USs'000

Balamce at 31 Decem ber 2022 23,000 5283 J0283

Prohin for the financal year - a7l a7t
Dividends paid

Balance at 31 December 2023 25,040 5,00 30,960

Profit for the financial peniod - HO4 B4
Dividends paid

Balance a1 31 December 2024 25,0M0) i, 764 31,764

Mo mtenim dividend was pard to the intermediate parent for 2024 (3] December 2023: USSnil). The directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: LS5
mil}

The zccompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

2221292
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2024

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The company 15 a private limited company and is incorporated and domiciled in Ireland The address of its
registered office is 47-49 St Stephen’s Green, Dublin 2, Ireland

The mmediate parent undertaking 15 Goldman Sachs Asset Management International Holdings LL.C., a
company incorporated and domiciled in the United States of America.

The ultimate parent undertaking and the parent company of the smallest and largest group for which consolidated
financial statements are prepared 13 The Goldman Sachs Group, [nc., a company mcorporated inthe United States
of America. Copes of its consolidated financal statements can be obtamed from Investor Relations, 200 West
Street, MNew York, NY 10282, United States of Amenca, or at www.goldmansachs comsharcholders.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a1 Basis of preparation

The company prepares [nancial statements under Irish Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (Irish
GAAP),

The financial statements have been prepared on the gomg concern basis as the Darectors are of the view that
the Company can continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The financial statements have
been prepared under the historical ¢ost convention and in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework (FRS 101} and Insh law, including the Companies Act 2014,

The following exemptions from the disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFR.5) as adopted by the ELU have beenapplied in the preparation of these financial statements in accordance
with FES 10]:

(1) [FES 2 *Share-based Payment’ paragraph 45(h) and 46 to 52, These disclosures are provided i the
consolidated financial statements of Group Inc,;

(i)  IFES 7 ‘Financial Instruments: [isclosures™;
(i}  TFES 13 “Fair Value Measurement” paragrapha 21-99;

(iv)  IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers” second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs
103¢a), 114, 115, 118, 119%a) toc), 12010 127 and 129,

iv)  IAS 1 ‘Preseniation of Financial Statements” paragraph 3% to preseni comparative information in
respect of LAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements’ paragraph T90a)(iv),

(vi) LAS I ‘Presentation of Financial Statements” paragraphs 10(0), 16, and 40A-T3,

(vir) [AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows',

{vin) LAS 8 *Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” paragraphs 30 and 31,
() 1AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” paragraph 17, and

(x)  TAS 24 "‘Related Party Disclosures’ requirements to disclose transactions with compamies also wholly
owned within GS Group,
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Docusign Envalope |00 C7ETTATF-2045-40AF-A3ES-5D4 TAE1 3FDET

GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

I

Revenue recognition

The company accounts for revenees eamed from contracts with clients for mvestment management services
under IFRS 15, As such, revenues from these services are recognised when perfomance obligations related
tos the underlying transactions are completed.

It the company 15 principal o the transsction, the company recogmises revenue on contracts with clients,
gross of expenses incurred to satisfy some or all it performance obligations, The company & principal to
the transaction if it has the primary obligation to provade the service to the client. The company satisfies the
performance obligation by itself, or by engaging other G5 Group entities o satisfy some or all its
performance obligations on its behall. Such revenue is recognised in tumover and expenses incurred are
recognised in administrative expenses.

Tumover represents management company fees and revenues associated with amangements where the
company 15 principal to providing services but ultimately sub-delezates provision of these services, such as
portfolio management. It is recognised on an sccruals basis over the period that the related service is
provided.

Drividends

Final equity dividends are recognised as a hability and deducted from equity in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the company’s sharcholder. Intenim equity dwidends are recopnised and deducted
from equity when paid

Forcign currencies
The company’s financial statements are presented in U3, dollars, which is also the company’s functional

curmeney.

Transactions dencminated in foreign currencies are translated into U5, dellars at rates of exchange ruling
on the date the transaction occurred. Monetary assets and habilities denomimated in foreign currencies are
translated into L5, dollars at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the profit and less account

Cash at bank and in hand

This mchudes cash at bank and in hand and highly liquid deposits held i the ordinary course of business.
Financial assets and financial liabilitics

(i) Hecopnition and derecognition

Fmancial aszets and financial liabalities are recognised when the company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractunl nghts to the cash flows from the financial asset
expre or if the company transfers the financial asset and either a) substantially all the rek and rewards
of ownership, or b) neither ransfers nor retains substantially all the nsk and rewards of ownership and
the company does not retain control of that financial asset. A financial liability is derecognised only
when it 15 extinguished (i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract 15 dischanged, s cancelled or
expires),
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1. Financial assets and financial liabilitics {continucd)
{ii) Classification and measurement

The company ¢lassilies its nancial assels as (nancial assets measured at amorised cost on the basis
of both the company’s business model for managing financial assets and the contractual cash flow
charactenistics of the Ninancial assets. The business model reflects how the company manages particular
groups of assets in order fo generate future cash flows, Whene the business model is to hold the assets
to collect contractual cash lows. the company subsequently assesses whether the cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and mterest,

Fmancial assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows and have cash flows that
represent solely payments of principal and nterest are measured at amaortised cost, unless they are
dezsignated at fair value through profit or loss. The company considers whether the cash flows represent
basic lending arrangements and where contractual terms introduce exposure to nsk or valatility
inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement the linancial asset is classified and measwred at fair value

through prafit or loss,

Financial assets at amortised cost are imitally measured a1 far value plus transaction costs and
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, The effective interest method 15 a
method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and allocating the interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, a shorter period 1o
the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the company
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the fimancial asset but does not consider future
credit lesses. All finance mcome 15 recogmised in the profit and boss account,

The company classifies its financial habilities as financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. The
classification, which is determined at nitial recognition, depends on the purpose for which they were
segquired or originated.
Financial lnbalities measured at amortised cost are initially recogmised at fair value plus transaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortesed cost using the effective interest method (see above)
Finance costs, ingluding discounts allowed on issue, are recorded in the profit and loss account

(i) (MTsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented i the balance sheet

where there is:
() Currently a legally enforceable nght to set off the recopnised amounts; and
(i) Intent to scttie on & net basis or 1o realse the asset and seetle the bability simultaneous]y

Where these conditions are not met, financial assets and financial liabilities are presented on & gross
basis on the balance sheet

2. Current and delerred tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax 15 recogrused m the profit and loss
aceount

Current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date i the countries where the company operates and generates taxable income.
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

g Current and deferred tax {continued)

Deferred 1ax 15 recognised in respect of all temporary differences that have ongimated, but not reversed at
the halance sheet date, where transactions o events have occurred by that date that will result in an obligation

toe pay more tax or a right 1o pay less tax in the further with the follow ing exceptions:

(1) Deferred tax assets are recogmised only to the extent that the directors consider that it s more likely than
not that there will be sutable taxable profits from which the future reviersal of the underlying temporany

differences can be deducted

(1) Deferred 1ax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected toapply in the periods
in which termporary differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at

the balance sheet date

CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of [inancial statements requires management o make judgements, estimates and assumplions
that affect the amounts recognized in these financial statements. The nature of estimation means that actual
In the opnion of maenagement, there were no estimates of
Judgements made that had a significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements,

oltcomes could differ from those estimates

INTEREST RECEIVABLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

Interest on overmight deposits

DIRECTORS® EMOLUMENTS

The table below presents the company s director s emoluments:

Aggregate emoluments:

For quahfying services

Year encled Year ended

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
TISS (0 LSS000

202 131

202 131

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
LTSS D0 LTSS 0y

14062 1,17

1,402 1,171

The amounts included above relate to emoluments paid to four (31 December 2023 : four) non-executive directors
and 1o two (31 December 2023: three) executive directors. Company contributions made for three (31 December
2023 four) directors in respect of defined contribution schemes were USS3E,859 (31 December 2023

L15534.608).
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2024

. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Fees charged by group undertakings for sub-delegaied
functions

Fees charged by external parties for sub-delegated functions
Transaction based expenses

hanagement fees charged by group undentakings (note a)
Diirect costs of employment

Cther expenses

Year ended Year ended

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
(RS LSS (0

465,460 744,534

20,822 34,436

104,593 82,101

9,395 18,015

5517 4.636

3858 4,238

13,645 ERT, 0G0

a. Management fees charged by group undertakings relate 1o operational and administrative support, and

management services received fram group undertakings.,

Auditers’ remuneration
Mon-Awdit Services

Year ended Year ended

3 December 2024 31 December 2023
£41 500 €35,525

£41,500 £39,525

There were no non-audit services provided to the company during the vear endad 31 December 2024 or

during the year ended 31 December 2023,

The average maonthly number of emplovees, including executive Directors, during the vear was 25 (2023
-y

7. TAX ON PROFIT

a.  Analysis of charge Tor the period:

Current Tax

Irish corparation tax at 12.5%

Adjusiments in respect of prior periods

Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities (See note 7(h))

Deferred tax

Other timing differences

Adjustments in respect of prior periods
Total deferred tax (see note 8)

Total tax on profit on ordinary activities

Year ended Year endded

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
LTSS 000 USS 000

183 152

14 2]

197 143

(63} (33))

{63} 33

134 110
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2024

i TAX ON PROFIT (CONTINUED)
b, Factors affecting the tax charge for the current period:

Year ended Year ended
31 December 2024 31 Decemiber 2023
LSS 000 USS™000
Profit on ordinary activiltes before tax 38 187

Profit on ordnary activities at standard Inish
corporation tax rate (12.5%) 117 a8
Permanent differences 2 3
Adpusimenis in respect of prior periods 14 L]
Exchange differences 1 1%
Current tax charge for the period 134 110

c.  Factors that may alTect future tax charges:

The standard rate of Insh corporation tax 15 12.5% of profit before tax, however this 15 for businesses out of
scope of the ORCD Pillar Two agreement, which Ireland signed up to in 2021, For in scope busmesses, that
15, businesses with revenues in excess of €730m m a1 least two of the preceding four vears. a mirnimum
effective tax rate of 15% may apply

As per the OECTY's Pillar Two agreement, certmn Multinational Enterprises (MME), including those which
are domicited in Ireland, will be subject to a minimum 15% tax rate from 2024 onwards. The EL Minimum
Tax Directive was enacted in Ireland as a part of the Autumn 3023 Finance Act, enabling the application of
the global minimum effective tax rate of 15%, for m-scope entities

Cn 20 December 2023, the OECD Administrative Guidance was recognised as part of Insh Pillar Two
legislation following signing of Statutory instrument 6732023, This will require that a top-up tax is
calculated by referénce to financial accounting rules, subject to certan adjustments agreed upon by the
OECT and set out in the legislation

Based on the analysis performed across the various jurisdictions in which the GS Group operates; it has been
determined that the company does not have a requirement to accrue any domestic top-up Lax as may be

required under the OECD Pillar Two rules

8. DEFERRED TAX: ORIGINATION & REVERSAL OF TIMING DIFFERENCES

Year ended
31 December 2023
LISS"000

73

15

38
i3

]

Year ended
31 December 2024
LSS ()
[Meferred tax balance comprises:

Other timing differences 130
130

The movements in the deferred tax balance were as follows:
As at 31 December 2023 73
Transfer 1o/ from the peofit and [oss account for the period 63
Exchangse differences (=]
As at 31 December 2024 130

73
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2024

9, DEBTORS
Diebtors, all of which are due within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise!
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
TS 0 USS 000
Amounts due from customers 94200 153,722
Amounts due from group undertakangs 22.363 4,015
Other debtars 25 364
Dieferred tax 130 73
117,418 208,274
10, CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
USS5 000 LSS0
Amounts dug o proup undertakings 131,193 212487
Accraals 2,337 1,975
Intercompany barrowings 28,366 21,349
Corporation lax payable - H
161,59 135811
11. SHARE CAPITAL
31 December 2024 31 December 2023
No. LSS 000 No. LSS i
i d Tully
paid
Ordinary shares of U531 each 25,000,000 23,000 25 000X 25,0W00)
Ordinary shares of €1 each = - 2 -
Om 19 December 2018, the company issued 25, 000,00 ordinary shares of USS1 at par to Goldman Sachs Asset
Management Imernational Holdings L.L.C ., the immediate parent undertaking.
12. DIVIDENDS PATD
Year ended 31 Year ended
December 2024 3 December 2023
U'SS'000 LSS 000
Intersm dividends paid -
Mo intenm dividend was paid for 2024 (31 December 2023 USS nl).
13. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The company had no financial commitments ar contingencies outstanding at perod end (31 December 2023
IS5 rul)
14. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There are no subsequent events affecting the company up 1o the date of approval of the finan<ial statements.
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2024

15 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Ms. Amy Warcham and MMr. Daniel Jackson ceased in the role of secretary of the Board as of 14 May 2024, Mz
Sheena Varsani was appointed as secretary of the Board as of 14 May 2024,

There were no other significant events afTecting the company during the period ended 31 December 2024,

16, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The company monitors its capital on an ongoing basis. The company’s objective is to be prudently capitalized in
terms of the amount and composition of its equity base compared to the company’s risk exposures. The
appropriate level and composition of its equity capital is determined by multiple factors including the company’s
current and future regulatory capital requirements, the results of the company™s capital planning and other factors
such as the business environment in the financal markets.

Dhiring 2024, the company was in compliance with the capatal requirenients set by the Central Bank of Ireland

The directors conswder that the most mponant components of the company s financial sk are market risk, eredit
risk and liquidity risk. The company, as part of a global group, adheres 1o global risk management policies and
procedures,

a. Market Risk

Market rizk is the risk of loss inthe value of the company s financial assets and financial liabilities due to changes
in market conditions. Rasks are monitosed and controlled through strong fiemwede oversight and independent
control and support functions across the company s business. Relevant market risks for the company are interest
rate risk and currency nisk.

Interest rate nsk results from exposures to changes in level, slope and curveture of yield curves, volatilities of
interest rates and credit spreads

Currency risk results from changes m spot prices, forward prices and volatilities in currency rates

The company manages its mnterest rate and currency risk as part of GS Group's nsk management poliey, by
eatablishing economic hedges as appropriate to the crcumstances of the company.

b, Credit risk

Credit nsk represents the potential for loss due to the default or deteriomation in the credit quality of a counterparty.
Credit risk 18 managed by reviewing the credit quality of counterparties and reviewing, if applicable, the
underlving collateral spainst which the asets are secured. The company s credil exposuses are:

Cash at bank and in hand - Cash at bank and in hand include both interest-bearing and non-interest-bearing
deposits. To mitigate the risk of loss, the company places substantially all of its deposits with highly-rated banks.

Debiors - The company 15 exposed 1o credit risk from s amounts due from customers and amounts due from
group undertakings. Fees from investment funds are settled from the AUM of the fund, for which the credit nsk
is considered mimimal

e, Liquidity risk

Liquiclity risk is the risk that the company does not have sufficient cash or collateral to make payments to its
counterparties as they [all due. The company manages s houidity risk i accordance with GS Growp's
comprehensive and conservative set of liquidity and funding policies to address both company specific and
broader industry or market liquedity events.

M-
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GOLDMAN SACHS ASSET MANAGEMENT FUND SERVICES LIMITED

17

18,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2024

FINANCIALASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

a. Financial assets and financial liabilities by category

All financial assets are categonized as financial assets measured at amortized cost in the curment and prior pertods.
All fimancial habilities are categorized as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost in the current and prior

periods

b.  Fair value of financial assets and lnancial labilities not measured ot fair value
The company has USST92.8 millien (31 December 2023: US5266.3 mallion) of current Ninancisl assels and
US%161.6 mailhon (31 December 2023 1785233.2 million) of current fmancial labilties, all of whech are not

measured a1 fair value. Given the short-term nature of these mstruments, the carmyving amounts of the financial
assets and financial liabilities on the balance sheet are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

¢ Moturity of financial liabilitics
All financaal liabalities are due within ene month of the balance sheet date.
APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2025,
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Goldman Sachs Asset Management International
2024 12 100,944 150 9,315
(¢
2025 9,000
1996
23 2002 18
29
2007 30
2008 28
€
State Street Custodial Services (lreland) Limited
2025 200,000 3,876
2025 31
193.82
1991 22
4

CACEIS Ireland Limited

2025 3,960 64 1,837

1995 10
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State Street Fund Services (lreland) Limited
2025 351,000 6,803
1992 23
(6 Goldman, Sachs & Co. LLC
2024 12 14,568,735,105 1,783
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2025 405
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2025 31 1,350
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Independent auditors* report to the unitholders of Goldman Sachs Global
Funds

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs Global Funds® financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the Trust”s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 30 November 2024 and
of its results for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” and Irish law);
and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the European Communities (Undertakings
for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) .

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements,
which comprise:

the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 November 2024 ;
the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

the Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units for the year
then ended;

the Schedule of Investments as at 30 November 2024 ; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“1SAs (Ireland)”) and
applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors”® responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Ireland, which includes 1AASA"s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Emphasis of matter - financial statements prepared on a basis other than going concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified, we draw attention to note 3 to the
financial statements which describes the reasons why the financial statements have been prepared on a basis other
than going concern.

283/292



EDINETOOOO
o o =725 )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements other
than the financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The manager is responsible for the other
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do
not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of
assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, indoing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 1f we identify
an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the manager for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Manager”s Responsibilities set out on page 3 & 4, the manager is
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework giving a
true and fair view.

The manager is also responsible for such internal control as the manager determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the manager is responsible for assessing the Trust"s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the manager intends to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
1SAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individual ly or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly using
data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for testing, rather
than testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing based on their size or
risk characteristics. Inother cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the
population fromwhich the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 1AASA
website at:

https://www. 1aasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dc9c3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditors”® report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders as a body in accordance with
the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as
amended) and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other
purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent inwriting.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin

27 March 2025
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guarantee

https://www. 1aasa. ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
a98202dc9c3a/Description_of auditors_responsibilities_for_audit.pdf

2014 391
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Independent auditors " report to the members of Goldman Sachs Asset
Management Fund Services Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Goldman Sachs Asset Management Fund Services Limited"s financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the company”s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31 December
2024 and of its profit for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with General ly Accepted Accounting Practice in Ireland
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial Reporting
Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” and Irish law); and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Report of Directors and Audited Financial
Statements, which comprise:

the Balance sheet as at 31 December 2024;
the Profit and loss account for the year then ended;
the Statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“1SAs (Ireland)”)
and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors® responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Ireland, which includes 1AASA"s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities inaccordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company®s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors” use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as
to the company*s abi lity to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Report of Directors and Audited Financial
Statements other than the financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, indoing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 1fwe
identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures
to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement
of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based
on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Directors” Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the Companies
Act 2014 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs
(Ireland) and the Companies Act 2014 require us to also report certain opinions and matters as described
below:

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the
Directors” Report for the year ended 31 December 2024 is consistent with the financial statements and has
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Based on our knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors® Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors” responsibilities, the directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company”s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors” responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances, possibly
using data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of items for
testing, rather than testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular items for testing
based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit sampling to enable us to draw a
conclusion about the population fromwhich the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
1AASA website at: https://www. iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8f-
298202dc9c3a/Description of auditors responsibilities for audit.pdf

This description forms part of our auditors” report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company®s members as a body in
accordance with section 391 of the Companies Act 2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, ingiving these
opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent inwriting.
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2014 opinions on other matters

We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the company were sufficient to permit the financial statements
to be readily and properly audited.

The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Other exception reporting
Directors” remuneration and transactions

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors”
remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of that Act have not been made. We have no
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Jonathan 0" Connell

for and on behal f of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

24 March 2025
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